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To:  Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Board of Directors 
From:   Shawna M. Papale 
Date:   April 25, 2025 
RE:   OCIDA Meeting Agenda 
 
The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency shall meet at 8:00 AM Friday, May 2, 2025. 
Members of the public may listen to the Agency meeting by calling +1-408-418-9388, Access code: 
2861 176 2795 or attend in person. The Minutes of the Agency meeting will be transcribed and 
posted on the OCIDA website. 

1. Executive Session   

2. Approve minutes – March 28, 2025 

3. Financial Review  

4. Consider a preliminary inducement resolution relating to the Chobani, LLC Facility, granting 
preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of exemptions from sales tax (valued at 
$50,625,000) and reduction in real property tax (valued at $385,747,722) that provides the Company 
will make PILOT Payments (a) during the construction period: in an amount equal to taxes calculated 
using the current assessed value of the Land; and (b) after the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy: 
annual fixed payments of $2,000,000 for forty (40) years, including scheduled incremental increases, 
with PILOT Payments to be allocated to the tax jurisdictions in accordance with an Agreement 
Allocating PILOT Payments, which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy, and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing subject to a SEQR 
determination. 

 
5. Consider a request from 126 Business Park LLC for the Agency to consent to the sale of its Facility 

and assignment of existing lease-leaseback documents to 126 Business Park Holdings LLC. 
  
6. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the 126 Business Park Holdings LLC facility. The Agency is 

serving as lead agency and has determined the Project to be an “Unlisted Action.” 
  
7. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the 126 Business Park Holdings LLC facility, granting 

preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of exemptions from sales tax (valued at 
$13,125), exemptions from mortgage recording tax (valued at $34,125) and reduction in real property 
tax (valued at $635,387) for a period of 10 years, which financial assistance is consistent with the 
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Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; adopting a finding that the project is reasonably necessary 
to discourage project occupants from relocating outside of New York State and/or preserving the 
competitive position in their industry; and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

  
8. Consider a request from Griffiss Local Development Corporation (Building 796/798 Facility) 

granting preliminary approval for financial assistance (valued at $257,759) in the form of extending the 
existing PILOT Agreement for an additional ten years with PILOT Payments to continue at the 
current level (75% of taxes) relating to for-profit tenants and a full exemption to continue relating to 
not-for-profit tenants including GLDC, which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

 
9. Consider a request from Griffiss Local Development Corporation (Building 240 Facility) granting 

preliminary approval for financial assistance (valued at $0) in the form of extending the existing 
PILOT Agreement for an additional ten years with PILOT Payments to continue at the current full 
exemption, which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy; and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

 
10. Consider a request from Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation (International 

Wire Facility) granting preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of extending the 
existing PILOT Agreement for an additional five years with PILOT Payments to (a) be converted to 
fixed payments equal to the current PILOT Payment plus an annual escalator if the Facility is 
occupied by a for-profit tenant (value estimated at $20,201) and (b) to be fully exempt if the Facility is 
vacant and occupied by the Company (maximum value estimated at $249,425), which financial 
assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; and authorizing the 
Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

 
11. Consider a request from Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation (Complex 4 

Facility) granting preliminary approval for financial assistance (valued at $72,821) in the form of 
extending the existing PILOT Agreement for an additional five years during which time the property 
will remain fully exempt from taxes, which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

 
12. Consider a request from B240 LLC to convert commercial space to residential space (Building 2A); 

approve an amendment to the Recapture Agreement to eliminate the “Employment Obligation” and 
“mixed use” scoring requirement, to extend the previously authorized sales tax exemption to the 
conversion project through April 30, 2025, and authorize the form and execution of related 
documents, subject to counsel approval. 

  

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/


 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Anthony J. Picente Jr. 

County Executive 
 

Shawna M. Papale  
Secretary/ Treasurer/ 

Executive Director 
 

Timothy Fitzgerald 
Assistant Secretary 584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, New York 13441-4105 
(315) 338-0393, fax (315) 338-5694 

    

Stephen R. Zogby 
Chairman 

David C. Grow 
Vice Chairman 

 
Franca Armstrong 

James J. Genovese, II 
Aricca R. Lewis 

Kristen H. Martin 
Tim R. Reed 

 
 

13. Consider a request from Hangar Road Rome LLC to consent to the change of control of an existing 
tenant, consenting to the assignment of the existing sublease agreement and authorizing the form and 
execution of related documents, subject to counsel approval. 

 
Old Business 
 
Next meeting date: Friday, June 20, 2025 at 8:00 AM at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY. 
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 DRAFT Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

March 28, 2025 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY /Webex Video/Teleconference 

 
 

Members Present: Steve Zogby, David Grow, Kristen Martin, Tim Reed, Aricca Lewis, and James Genovese. 
Members Present Virtual: Franca Armstrong. 
EDGE Staff Present: Shawna Papale, Tim Fitzgerald, CJ Hanrahan, Marc Barraco, and Mark Kaucher. 
EDGE Staff Present Virtual: Maureen Carney. 
Others Present: Greg Creedon, The DeLong Co., Inc.  
Others Present Virtual: Jenna Peppenelli, Levitt & Gordon; Gregg Evans, The Bonadio Group; Laura Ruberto and Linda 
Romano, Bond, Schoeneck & King; Mike DeLong and Marie DeLong, The DeLong Co., Inc.  
 
S. Zogby called the meeting to order at 8:04 AM.  
 
S. Zogby began by congratulating S. Papale on her “Salute to Outstanding Women” award from the YWCA. He also 
brought up that the United States Supreme Court denied a writ of certiorari filed by Bowers Development, LLC regarding 
the former O’Brien Plumbing property. A brief discussion ensued about the local and more widespread implications of 
that decision. 
 
Minutes – January 17, 2025 
S. Zogby presented the draft January 17, 2025 meeting minutes for review. J. Genovese moved to approve the January 
17, 2025 meeting minutes as presented. T. Reed seconded the motion, which carried 7-0. 
 
2024 Audit 
A. Lewis introduced the Agency’s draft 2024 audit. She stated that the Audit Committee had met and discussed the draft 
with The Bonadio Group. No material or adverse comments or findings to report. She recommended that the members 
approve the draft audit as presented, but first allowed G. Evans to go through the draft audit in more detail. Mr. Evans 
commended M. Carney and the accounting team for providing all the necessary information in a timely manner. He 
stated that the Agency’s restricted cash is up, which directly relates to the FAST NY grant that was awarded to the 
Agency. The Agency’s change in net position is due to an increase in projects. The Agency’s operating budget was 
basically flat. He explained that this year’s audit includes an unmodified opinion, which is the highest opinion given. This 
means that they believe the financial statements truly reflect the Agency’s financial condition. Internal controls were 
deemed to be satisfactory. There were no journal entries, which is good. He asked if any of the members had questions 
or concerns. With no questions or comments, D. Grow moved to approve the 2024 audit as presented. K. Martin 
seconded the motion, which carried 7-0. 
 
Interim Financials 
M. Carney presented the February 28, 2025 interim financial statement. She stated that the Agency has not deviated from 
its budget. The All Seasonings Ingredients project recently closed, and that the PILOT bill has been sent to Wolfspeed. No 
other items of note. With no questions or comments, The Agency received and accepted the interim financials as 
presented, subject to audit. 
 
The DeLong Co., Inc. – NYSDOT PFRAP Grant 
S. Zogby introduced a resolution authorizing the Agency to apply for a grant under the NYSDOT PFRAP Program for the 
benefit of The DeLong Co., Inc., conditioned upon the company assuming all obligations and duties in connection with the 
grant and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel review, all of which is subject to 
the Agency making a determination for the purposes of SEQR. T. Fitzgerald shared an overview of the proposal. The 
business is planning on making a substantial investment in its rail siding facility at its Sangerfield plant. This investment 
will help the company increase the capacity of products that can be transported via rail from their facility, including to 
international markets. The DeLong Co.’s Sangerfield facility serves over 300 farmers in Oneida County and the Central New 
York area. The proposed grant, if awarded, would be a reimbursement of costs incurred by The DeLong Co. for these 
upgrades. With no other questions or comments, A. Lewis made a motion to authorize the Agency to apply for a grant 
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under the NYSDOT PFRAP Program for the benefit of The DeLong Co., Inc., conditioned upon the company assuming all 
obligations and duties in connection with the grant and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, 
subject to counsel review, all of which is subject to the Agency making a determination for the purposes of SEQR. D. 
Grow seconded the motion, which carried 7-0.   
 
Annual Job Review 
S. Papale and M. Kaucher directed the members’ attention to the 2024 jobs report, and in particular the handful of projects 
with job shortfalls. S. Papale gave an overview of process to be taken to address these shortfalls with the individual 
projects. D. Grow expressed the importance of having a thoughtful conversation about addressing each of these shortfalls. 
S. Zogby emphasized that businesses and industries change and that the Agency needs to strike a balance between 
pursuing remedies to shortfalls while acknowledging changing conditions and not further hurting businesses. Staff will be 
reaching out to representatives from these projects to give them an opportunity to share their circumstances with the 
Agency.  
 
Ratify and Confirm PAAA Submissions 
Chair Zogby introduced a resolution to ratify and confirm the required PAAA documents and to approve their submission 
to New York State. T. Reed moved, and D. Grow seconded, a motion to ratify and confirm the required PAAA 
documents and to approve their submission to New York State. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
OCIDA Mission Statement Ratification & Approval of Performance Measurements for 2024 
Chair Zogby asked for a motion to ratify the Agency’s mission statement. A. Lewis made a motion, and J. Genovese 
seconded, to ratify the Agency’s mission statement. The motion carried 7-0. S. Zogby then requested a motion to 
approve the Agency’s performance measurements for 2024. T. Reed motioned, and D. Grow seconded, to approve the 
Agency’s performance measurements for 2024. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
Confidential Board Performance 
S. Zogby reminded the members to complete the confidential board performance evaluation forms and to submit them 
to T. Fitzgerald as soon as possible. 
 
Discussion Relating to Sublease Amendments 
S. Zogby shared that it would be useful to review the Agency’s consent process on subleases in project facilities in order 
to improve efficiency and responsiveness to the project businesses. L. Ruberto explained that the project leaseback 
agreements, which the Agency enters into with approved projects, require prior consent of the Agency when a new 
tenant is occupying space in a project facility. Counsel recommends this practice remain intact. The Agency has also 
been requiring companies request prior consent to subsequent modifications of a sublease. Counsel does not believe 
member consent is necessary in those instances because the Agency is largely not concerned with changes in business 
terms, nor is consent required under the leaseback agreement. Instead, counsel proposes a change in leaseback 
agreements that requires a company to provide the Agency with a copy of sublease amendments within ten days 
following execution. This will give the Agency the ability to stay informed of changes and respond if any changes do 
impact the project facility. The consensus among the members was that this is a reasonable proposal, and requested 
counsel to implement this change. 
 
S. Zogby reminded the members that Oneida County’s housing study report was recently unveiled. The members 
ought to review this and allow it to inform revisions to the Agency’s housing policy. 
 
Adjournment 
With no further business, S. Zogby asked for a motion to adjourn. At 8:43 AM A. Lewis moved, and K. Martin seconded a 
motion to adjourn. Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Tim Fitzgerald 



Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

March 31, 2025 

 

Balance Sheet:  

1. The balance in cash & cash equivalents and investments is approximately $748K; of this balance $386K is in short-
term CD’s and $362K is in the operating account, and in interest bearing money market accounts; the primary reason 
for the overall decrease is due to the decrease in net assets over the last 12 months of $40K, the increase in receivables 
and prepaids of $37K, and the increase in investments of $18K 

2. Last year at this time the agency had deposits held for the Indium PILOTs 
3. The $1,000 commitment fees collected from the following for projects that have not closed as of March 31: 

1. Solitude Solar, LLC (received February 2022) -project is closed- will reverse the commitment fee at a later 
date 

2. Park Grove, LLC (received May 2024)- Inducement Tabled 
3. National Building & Restoration Corporation (Received May 2024) -TBD 
4. Pennrose LLC/ Copper Village (received September 2024)- TBD 
5. Stark Truss Company (received October 2024)- TBD 
6. Assured Information Security, Inc. (received October 2024)- TBD 

4. Fund balance decreased by 10% over the last 12 months 
 

Budget Comparison Report (Income Statement): 

 

1. Project closings and application fees received as of 3/31/25 are as follows: 
 2/28/2025 All Seasonings Admin & Commitment Fee $  5,000.00  
 3/1/2025 Lodging Kit 

Company Admin & Commitment Fee $19,004.00  

   Total as of 3/31/25 $24,004.00  

 
    

Other Significant Items to Note: 
 

1. Per the PILOT terms, Wolfspeed is billed quarterly each year; the Q1 payment was billed February 15 and was 
disbursed to the jurisdictions and EDGE in accordance with the PILOT Allocation agreement in March 

2. All PILOTs administered through Agency with payments due on July 1 will be billed no later than June 1 
 



Current Year Prior Year

362,423 467,067 1
Investments 385,826 368,038 1

2,081 317,861 2
PILOT Holdings (2,081) (317,861) 2

21,232 7,250 
28,425 5,093 

797,906 847,448 

6,679 6,679 
(6,679) (6,679)

0 0 

797,906 847,448 

1,539 10,074 
2,000 1,938 
6,000 6,000 3
9,539 18,012 

9,539 18,012 

388,368 429,436 4
400,000 400,000 
788,368 829,436 

797,906 847,448 

Accounts Payable 

Total Assets

Liabilities

Restricted Cash - PILOT Holdings

A/D-Furniture/Fixt/Eqpt 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet

Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Fund Balance
Fund Balance-Board Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue

Current Liabilities

March 31, 2025 and 2024

Fixed Assets

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Prepaid Expenses

Furniture/Fixture/Eqpt

Current Assets

Liabilities & Net Assets

Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Total Fixed Assets



Current Period
Actual

Current Period
Budget

Year-to-Date
Actual

Year-to-Date
Budget 3/31/2024 3/31/2023

Interest Income 2,705 1,167 5,588 3,500 5,838 602 
Lease Payments 750 5,208 61,250 15,625 58,500 58,250 
PILOT Application / Admin Fees 19,004 24,167 24,004 1 72,500 97,409 44,998 

22,459 30,542 90,842 91,625 161,747 103,850 

Business Expense 40 583 120 1,750 1,304 20 
Contracted Service-Accounting 667 667 2,000 2,000 1,938 1,875 
Contracted Services - Legal 0 850 1,700 2,550 2,550 2,550 
Contracted Services- Other 355 542 1,065 1,625 1,065 508 
Marketing- Contracted Services 0 792 1,002 2,375 510 4,330 
Dues & Subscriptions 0 167 1,500 500 1,250 0 
Insurance - General 368 375 1,105 1,125 1,110 912 
Special ED Projects Contingency 0 2,083 0 6,250 6,250 6,250 
Office Supplies & Expense 0 208 896 625 120 120 
Seminars & Conferences 0 0 0 0 125 0 
Service Fees 24,244 24,244 72,731 72,731 65,055 69,100 

25,674 30,510 82,119 91,531 81,277 85,665 

(3,215) 31 8,723 94 80,470 18,185 

With Comparative Periods Ending 3/31/2024 and 3/31/2023

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Total Expenses

Excess or (Deficiency) of 
Revenue Over Expenses

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
Budget Comparison Report

Current Period: 3/1/2025 - 3/31/2025
Budget Period: 1/1/2025 - 12/31/2025



Cash Flows From ( Used by) Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (41,068)$        
Adjustments for Noncash Transactions
Depreciation and Amortization 0
(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts Receivable (13,982)
Accounts Receivable-PILOTs billed 0
Investments (17,788)
Prepaid Expenses (23,332)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (8,474)
Deferred Revenue 0

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (104,643)

Cash Flows From (Used By) Investing Activities
Capital Expenditures 0

Net Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities 0

Cash Flows From (Used By) Financing Activities
Repayments of Long Term Debt 0
Proceeds from  Long Term Debt 0

Net Cash Flows (Used by) Financing Activities 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (104,643)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 467,067

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 362,423$       

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period Ending March 31, 2025



PROJECT MEMO:  
 
Chobani 
 
Project: Under Phase 1, Chobani will construction of a 1.4  million square foot, full-scale 
processing facility.   Completion of Phase one is 2027; the company wants to be in the 
building late 2026/ early 2027. 
 
Oneida County, in conjunction with Chobani’s project, will carry out  over $80 million of 
infrastructure upgrades including water, sewer, gas, electric, transportation, site 
improvements & acquisition as well as address any environment items to the Triangle site.  
Oneida County has carried out an extensive NEPA process that allows for the usage of the 
Triangle site for non-aviation usage.  A PILOT Allocation Agreement is being contemplated 
for the annual $2.0 million payment (fixed for years 1 through 10; then increased annually 
by 1.5%).   The Allocation Agreement will take the annual PILOT payment and deviate from 
the normal prorate tax sharing.  The deviation will seek to allocate a larger share of the 
payments to the County to account  for the County’s investment.  
 
Company Facility  Investment: $1,215,055,000  
County Infrastructure Investment: $72,000,000 
 
Jobs: 1,070 jobs with an average salary of $89,900 
 
PILOT:  

• 40 year fixed PILOT – Years 1through 10 fixes at $2.0M; years 11-40 with a 
1.5% escalator 

• Savings of $385,747,722 

  
SALES TAX EXEMPTION: Savings of $51,625,000  
 
 











































Estimated Full Market Value (in thousands) 250,000$          Based upon 5 Year Construction Cost Total

45.00% (Provide)
Estimated Assessment in 1,000s 112,500$          Auto calculates

Full Payment 2026 Estimated 2027 Estimated Rate Year Muni
Oneida County 0.150670978 10.069977$      1,132,872$         10.271377$    10.476804$         2025 Oneida

City or Township** 0.310498478 20.751923$      2,334,591$         21.166961$    21.590301$         2025 Rome
Village** -$                  -$                   

School District 0.538830543 36.012318$      4,051,386$         36.732564$    37.467216$         24-25 Rome
Total 66.83$              7,518,850$         68.170902$    69.534320$         

**Verify equalization rates with jurisdiction for parity with other jurisdictions
Annual rate increase factor of 2% is used in calculator

1.02

Full 485-b Fixed Pyt Amt. Fixed Pyt Benefit

Annual rate 
increase factor 

applied to 
Fixed Pyt Amt.

Preconstruction year 
sub 1 pay just on land

Preconstruction year 
sub  2 pay just on land

2027 Year 1 70.93$                    7,979,063$       3,989,532$         2,000,000$     5,979,063$          0%
2 72.34$                    8,138,645$       4,476,254$         2,000,000$     6,138,645$          0%
3 73.79$                    8,301,417$       4,980,850$         2,000,000$     6,301,417$          0%
4 75.27$                    8,467,446$       5,503,840$         2,000,000$     6,467,446$          0%
5 76.77$                    8,636,795$       6,045,756$         2,000,000$     6,636,795$          0%
6 78.31$                    8,809,531$       6,607,148$         2,000,000$     6,809,531$          0%
7 79.87$                    8,985,721$       7,188,577$         2,000,000$     6,985,721$          0%
8 81.47$                    9,165,436$       7,790,620$         2,000,000$     7,165,436$          0%
9 83.10$                    9,348,744$       8,413,870$         2,000,000$     7,348,744$          0%

10 84.76$                    9,535,719$       9,058,933$         2,000,000$     7,535,719$          0%
11 86.46$                    9,726,434$       9,726,434$         2,030,000$     7,696,434$          1.5%
12 88.19$                    9,920,962$       9,920,962$         2,060,450$     7,860,512$          1.5%
13 89.95$                    10,119,382$     10,119,382$       2,091,357$     8,028,025$          1.5%
14 91.75$                    10,321,769$     10,321,769$       2,122,727$     8,199,042$          1.5%
15 93.58$                    10,528,205$     10,528,205$       2,154,568$     8,373,637$          1.5%
16 95.46$                    10,738,769$     10,738,769$       2,186,887$     8,551,882$          1.5%
17 97.36$                    10,953,544$     10,953,544$       2,219,690$     8,733,854$          1.5%
18 99.31$                    11,172,615$     11,172,615$       2,252,985$     8,919,630$          1.5%
19 101.30$                  11,396,067$     11,396,067$       2,286,780$     9,109,287$          1.5%
20 103.32$                  11,623,989$     11,623,989$       2,321,082$     9,302,907$          1.5%
21 105.39$                  11,856,468$     11,856,468$       2,355,898$     9,500,570$          1.5%
22 107.50$                  12,093,598$     12,093,598$       2,391,236$     9,702,361$          1.5%
23 109.65$                  12,335,470$     12,335,470$       2,427,105$     9,908,365$          1.5%
24 111.84$                  12,582,179$     12,582,179$       2,463,511$     10,118,668$        1.5%
25 114.08$                  12,833,823$     12,833,823$       2,500,464$     10,333,358$        1.5%
26 116.36$                  13,090,499$     13,090,499$       2,537,971$     10,552,528$        1.5%
27 118.69$                  13,352,309$     13,352,309$       2,576,041$     10,776,268$        1.5%
28 121.06$                  13,619,355$     13,619,355$       2,614,681$     11,004,674$        1.5%
29 123.48$                  13,891,742$     13,891,742$       2,653,901$     11,237,841$        1.5%
30 125.95$                  14,169,577$     14,169,577$       2,693,710$     11,475,867$        1.5%
31 128.47$                  14,452,969$     14,452,969$       2,734,116$     11,718,853$        1.5%
32 131.04$                  14,742,028$     14,742,028$       2,775,127$     11,966,901$        1.5%
33 133.66$                  15,036,869$     15,036,869$       2,816,754$     12,220,114$        1.5%
34 136.33$                  15,337,606$     15,337,606$       2,859,006$     12,478,600$        1.5%
35 139.06$                  15,644,358$     15,644,358$       2,901,891$     12,742,467$        1.5%
36 141.84$                  15,957,245$     15,957,245$       2,945,419$     13,011,826$        1.5%
37 144.68$                  16,276,390$     16,276,390$       2,989,600$     13,286,790$        1.5%
38 147.57$                  16,601,918$     16,601,918$       3,034,444$     13,567,474$        1.5%
39 150.52$                  16,933,956$     16,933,956$       3,079,961$     13,853,995$        1.5%
40 153.53$                  17,272,635$     17,272,635$       3,126,160$     14,146,475$        1.5%

Total: 481,951,245$   458,638,110$     96,203,523$   385,747,722$      

PILOT VALUE CALCULATOR VALUES

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX BENEFIT VALUE CALCULATOR
To be used as guidance to calculate the PILOT Benefit value on Page 9 of application. Rates and assessments are for example only.

Information on Real Property Proposed For PILOT

Tax Rates Per 1k of Assessment at time of application*

*Do not include Special District Tax Rates

Muni Equalization Rate % at time of 
application**
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Transcript Document No. [   ] 
 
 

Preliminary Inducement Resolution 
Chobani, LLC Facility 

 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY 
ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH A LEASE-LEASEBACK 
TRANSACTION WITH CHOBANI, LLC, AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING, AND 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Chobani, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Chobani, 
LLC and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing 
(collectively, the “Company”) has requested the Agency assist with a two-phase project, 
the first phase of which consists of the construction of a 1,418,000± square foot food 
processing building, which includes a 15,600± square foot wastewater treatment plant, 
a 68,000± square foot blow molding building, a 117,000± square foot wet receiving and 
physical plant, together with parking, landscaping and buffering to support the same 
(collectively, the “Improvements”); situated on a portion of two parcels of land situate at 
Perimeter Road and Perimeter Road West totaling 146± acres in the aggregate, located 
at the Griffiss International Airport, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York (the 
“Land”); and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all to be used for manufacturing dairy products and expanding the 
Company’s presence in New York State (the Land, the Improvements and the 
Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction and equipping of 
the Facility by the Company is referred to collectively as the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Oneida (the “County”) owns the Land and will lease 
the Land to the Company pursuant to a Lease Agreement (the “Ground Lease”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”); and 
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 WHEREAS, the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a 
Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to 
the Company in connection with the Project in the form of exemptions from sales and 
use taxes during the construction period and reduction in real property taxes that 
provides the Company will make payments-in-lieu-of-taxes (“PILOT Payments”) (a) 
during the construction period: in an amount equal to taxes calculated using the current 
assessed value of the Land; and (b) after the issuance of the first Certificate of 
Occupancy: annual fixed payments of $2,000,000 for forty (40) years, including 
scheduled incremental increases (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”) ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in the 
Application, the value of the Financial Assistance is described as follows: 
 

• Sales and use tax exemption not to exceed $51,625,000 
• Exemptions from real property taxes valued at approximately $385,747,722 

 
 WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties that the annual fixed PILOT 
Payments shall begin with the calendar year starting with January following the 
issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy; attached hereto as Exhibit A is an 
illustration of the proposed PILOT Payments assuming a Certificate of Occupancy will 
be issued in accordance with the construction schedules projected in the Application 
and may be amended based on actual completion dates; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has agreed to undertake certain significant site work in 
support of the Project (the “County Site Improvements”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to offset the costs of the County Site Improvements, PILOT 
Payments will be allocated among the County, the City of Rome and the Rome City 
School District (collectively, the “Affected Tax Jurisdictions”) pursuant to the terms of an 
Agreement Allocating PILOT Payments among the Agency, the Company and the 
Affected Tax Jurisdictions (the “PILOT Allocation Agreement”); and 
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 WHEREAS, the Company has committed to create 1,070 FTEs at the Facility by 
December 31, 2031 as a result of undertaking the Project, to be acheived on the 
following schedule: 
 

December 31, 2027     300 
December 31, 2028     550 
December 31, 2029     850 
December 31, 2030     850 
December 31, 2031  1,070 

 
(the “Employment Obligation”), and the Agency will condition the proposed Financial 
Assistance on the Company achieving the same or else be subject to recapture or 
termination of Financial Assistance relating to the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the 
granting of any Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that 
all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, the PILOT Allocation Agreement, or the location or nature 
of the Facility, can be heard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-
leaseback transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and such notice 
(together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit C; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the application of the 
Company and to representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback 
transaction is either an inducement to the Company to maintain and expand the Facility 
in the State or is necessary to maintain the competitive position of the Company in its 
industry; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed PILOT Payments are a deviation from the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the “Policy”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating deviating from its Policy for the reasons 
described in Exhibit D attached hereto; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation 



 

 4  
21577039.v1-4/25/25 

of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency 
constitutes a “State Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to 
the Agency an Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the 
“Questionnaire”) with respect to the Project, a copy of which is on file at the office of the 
Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in furtherance of the Griffiss International Airport/Airport Business 
Park Redevelopment Project, the County has completed Parts I, II and III of the Full 
Environmental Assessment Form (the “FEAF”) relating to proposed development of the 
Land and, in its capacity as lead agency, has made a negative declaration of 
environmental significance in a resolution passed on April 9, 2025; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County reviewed the Application for Financial Assistance and 
the Questionnaire and determined a supplemental review of the Project by the lead 
agency under SEQRA is required; and 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the granting of any Financial Assistance and following the 
determination of the lead agency, the Agency will complete its environmental review 
and make a determination for purposes of SEQR. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that: 
 
Section 1. (a) The Project constitutes a “project” within the meaning of the Act. 
 
  (b) The Project and the Agency’s Financial Assistance therefor, will 

promote job opportunities, health, general prosperity and the 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County and the people of 
the State of New York and improve their standard of living, and 
thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the same is, 
therefore, approved. 

 
  (c) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 

a lease-leaseback transaction for the purpose of providing financial 
assistance for the Project, as reflected in the Company’s 
application to the Agency as may be amended from time to time 
prior to the closing of the lease-leaseback transaction. 
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  (d) The Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Company 
from locating the Project out of State and/or to preserve the 
Company’s competitive position in its industry. 

 
Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 

substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-
leaseback transaction, and the completion of the Facility (the 
"Agreement") is hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver 
the Agreement, with such changes in terms and form as the 
Chairman shall approve.  The execution thereof by the Chairman 
shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency shall assist the Company in the Project and will 

provide the Financial Assistance with respect thereto subject to 
(i) obtaining all necessary governmental approvals, (ii) approval of 
the members of the Company, (iii) approval of the members of the 
Agency, (iv) the Agency making a determination of environmental 
significance for purposes of SEQR; (v) agreement by the Agency 
and the Company upon mutually acceptable terms and conditions 
for the Leaseback Agreement and other documentation usual and 
customary to transactions of this nature, (vi) agreement by the 
Company, the Agency and the Affected Tax Jurisdictions upon 
mutually acceptance terms and conditions for the PILOT Allocation 
Agreement; (vii) the condition that there are no changes in New 
York State Law which prohibit or limit the Agency from fulfilling its 
obligation and commitment as herein set forth to enter into the 
lease-leaseback transaction and (vii) payment by the Company of 
the Agency's transaction fee and the fees and disbursements of 
transaction counsel, more particularly described in the Inducement 
Agreement. 

 
Section 4.  The Agency is hereby directed to schedule the Hearing, to be 

conducted after the Agency makes a determination for purposes of 
SEQR and the agreement by the Affected Tax Jurisdictions of the 
allocation of the PILOT Payments, so that the Agency may receive 
comments from all interested parties on the proposed Financial 
Assistance and the terms of the proposed PILOT Allocation 
Agreement. 
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Section 5.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel in connection with the lease-leaseback 
transaction. 

 
Section 6.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 

authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the lease-leaseback transaction. 

 
Section 7.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 

(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company, (ii) to 
distribute copies of this resolution by electronic mail, read receipt 
requested, to the Oneida County Executive, the City of Rome 
Mayor, the Rome City School District Superintendent and the Rome 
City School District Clerk of the Board of Education; and (iii) to do 
such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 



 

   
21577039.v1-4/25/25 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
 I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution 
and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 
 
 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in 
public session on May 2, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which 
the following members were: 
 
Members Present:  
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
 
Others Present:  
  
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

Voting Aye Voting Nay 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
 The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to 
and approved at such meeting. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of 
the date, time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all 
respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the 
meeting. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 
___________________________ 2025. 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A 

PILOT Payments 

Exemption Year                           County/City Taxes                      School Taxes            Fixed Payment 
Year One 01/01/2027 – 12/31/2027               07/01/2028 – 06/30/2029 $2,000,000 

Year Two 01/01/2028 – 12/31/2028               07/01/2029 – 06/30/2030 $2,000,000 

Year Three 01/01/2029 – 12/31/2029               07/01/2030 – 06/30/2031 $2,000,000 

Year Four 01/01/2030 – 12/31/2030               07/01/2031 – 06/30/2032 $2,000,000 

Year Five 01/01/2031 – 12/31/2031               07/01/2032 – 06/30/2033 $2,000,000 

Year Six 01/01/2032 – 12/31/2032               07/01/2033 – 06/30/2034 $2,000,000 

Year Seven 01/01/2033 – 12/31/2033               07/01/2034 – 06/30/2035 $2,000,000 

Year Eight 01/01/2034 – 12/31/2034 07/01/2035 – 06/30/2036 $2,000,000 

Year Nine 01/01/2035 – 12/31/2035               07/01/2036 – 06/30/2037 $2,000,000 

Year Ten 01/01/2036 – 12/31/2036               07/01/2037 – 06/30/2038 $2,000,000 

Year Eleven 01/01/2037 – 12/31/2037 07/01/2038 – 06/30/2039 $2,030,000 

Year Twelve 01/01/2038 – 12/31/2038               07/01/2039 – 06/30/2040 $2,060,450 

Year Thirteen 01/01/2039 – 12/31/2039               07/01/2040 – 06/30/2041 $2,091,357 

Year Fourteen 01/01/2040 – 12/31/2040               07/01/2041 – 06/30/2042 $2,122,727 

Year Fifteen 01/01/2041 – 12/31/2041               07/01/2042 – 06/30/2043 $2,154,568 

Year Sixteen 01/01/2042 – 12/31/2042               07/01/2043 – 06/30/2044 $2,186,887 

Year Seventeen 01/01/2043 – 12/31/2043               07/01/2044 – 06/30/2045 $2,219,690 

Year Eighteen 01/01/2044 – 12/31/2044 07/01/2045 – 06/30/2046 $2,252,985 

Year Nineteen 01/01/2045 – 12/31/2045               07/01/2046 – 06/30/2047 $2,286,780 

Year Twenty 01/01/2046 – 12/31/2046               07/01/2047 – 06/30/2048 $2,321,082 

Year Twenty-One 01/01/2047 – 12/31/2047 07/01/2048 – 06/30/2049 $2,355,898 

Year Twenty-Two 01/01/2048 – 12/31/2048               07/01/2049 – 06/30/2050 $2,391,236 
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Year Twenty-Three 01/01/2049 – 12/31/2049               07/01/2050 – 06/30/2051 $2,427,105 

Year Twenty-Four 01/01/2050 – 12/31/2050               07/01/2051 – 06/30/2052 $2,463,511 

Year Twenty-Five 01/01/2051 – 12/31/2051               07/01/2052 – 06/30/2053 $2,500,464 

Year Twenty-Six 01/01/2052 – 12/31/2052               07/01/2053 – 06/30/2054 $2,537,971 

Year Twenty-Seven 01/01/2053 – 12/31/2053               07/01/2054 – 06/30/2055 $2,576,041 

Year Twenty-Eight 01/01/2054 – 12/31/2054 07/01/2055 – 06/30/2056 $2,614,681 

Year Twenty-Nine 01/01/2055 – 12/31/2055               07/01/2056 – 06/30/2057 $2,653,901 

Year Thirty 01/01/2056 – 12/31/2056               07/01/2057 – 06/30/2058 $2,693,710 

Year Thirty-One 01/01/2057 – 12/31/2057 07/01/2058 – 06/30/2059 $2,734,116 

Year Thirty-Two 01/01/2058 – 12/31/2058               07/01/2059 – 06/30/2060 $2,775,127 

Year Thirty-Three 01/01/2059 – 12/31/2059               07/01/2060 – 06/30/2061 $2,816,754 

Year Thirty-Four 01/01/2060 – 12/31/2060               07/01/2061 – 06/30/2062 $2,859,006 

Year Thirty-Five 01/01/2061 – 12/31/2061               07/01/2062 – 06/30/2063 $2,901,891 

Year Thirty-Six 01/01/2062 – 12/31/2062               07/01/2063 – 06/30/2064 $2,945,419 

Year Thirty-Seven 01/01/2063 – 12/31/2063               07/01/2064 – 06/30/2065 $2,989,600 

Year Thirty-Eight 01/01/2064 – 12/31/2064 07/01/2065 – 06/30/2066 $3,034,444 

Year Thirty-Nine 01/01/2065 – 12/31/2065               07/01/2066 – 06/30/2067 $3,079,961 

Year Forty 01/01/2066 – 12/31/2066               07/01/2067 – 06/30/2068 $3,126,160 

Total   $96,203,522.00 
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EXHIBIT B 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the _____ day of May 2025 at 
_______ a.m., local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New 
York in connection with the following matters: 
  
 Chobani, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Chobani, LLC and/or 
an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the 
“Company”) has requested the Agency assist with a two-phase project, the first 
phase of which consists of the construction of a 1,418,000± square foot food 
processing building, which includes a 15,600± square foot wastewater treatment 
plant, a 68,000± square foot blow molding building, a 117,000± square foot wet 
receiving and physical plant, together with parking, landscaping and buffering to 
support the same (collectively, the “Improvements”); situated on a portion of two 
parcels of land situate at Perimeter Road and Perimeter Road West totaling 146± 
acres in the aggregate, located at the Griffiss International Airport, City of Rome, 
Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition and installation of equipment 
in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to be used for manufacturing dairy 
products and expanding the Company’s presence in New York State (the Land, the 
Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the 
construction and equipping of the Facility by the Company is referred to collectively 
as the “Project”). The Project will be initially owned and/or operated by the 
Company. 
 
 The Company will lease the Land from the County of Oneida and will lease 
the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a lease agreement, and the Agency will lease 
the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a leaseback agreement. At the end of 
the lease term, the Agency will terminate its leasehold interest in the Facility. The 
Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company in the form 
of exemptions from sales and use taxes during the construction period and reduction 
of real property taxes that provides the Company will make payments-in-lieu-of-
taxes (“PILOT Payments”) (a) during the construction period: in an amount equal to 
taxes calculated using the current assessed value of the Land; and (b) after the 
issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy: annual fixed payments of $2,000,000 
for forty (40) years, including scheduled incremental increases (collectively, the 
“Financial Assistance”), which PILOT Payments are a deviation from the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and will be allocated among the County, the City of 
Rome and the Rome City School District pursuant to the terms of an Agreement 
Allocating PILOT Payments, to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing 
Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions 
described herein. 
 
 A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear 
and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to 
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either the proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of 
the Facility. Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or 
electronically prior to the hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed 
and posted on the Agency’s website. A copy of the Application for Financial 
Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of the costs 
and benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public inspection at the offices 
of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s website. 
 
      ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
      DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Dated:  May __, 2025  By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director  
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EXHIBIT C 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
2025 Real Estate Lease 

Chobani, LLC Facility 

1. Tim Fitzgerald, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at ____ a.m. 

2. Mr. Fitzgerald being the Assistant Secretary of the Agency recorded the 
minutes of the hearing. 

3. Mr. Fitzgerald then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows: 

 Chobani, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Chobani, LLC 
and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the 
foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has requested the Agency 
assist with a two-phase project, the first phase of which consists of the 
construction of a 1,418,000± square foot food processing building, 
which includes a 15,600± square foot wastewater treatment plant, a 
68,000± square foot blow molding building, a 117,000± square foot wet 
receiving and physical plant, together with parking, landscaping and 
buffering to support the same (collectively, the “Improvements”); 
situated on a portion of two parcels of land situate at Perimeter Road 
and Perimeter Road West totaling 146± acres in the aggregate, 
located at the Griffiss International Airport, City of Rome, Oneida 
County, New York (the “Land”); and acquisition and installation of 
equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to be used for 
manufacturing dairy products and expanding the Company’s presence 
in New York State (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment 
referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction and 
equipping of the Facility by the Company is referred to collectively as 
the “Project”). The Project will be initially owned and/or operated by the 
Company. 

 
 The Company will lease the Land from the County of Oneida and will 

lease the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a lease agreement, and 
the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a 
leaseback agreement. At the end of the lease term, the Agency will 
terminate its leasehold interest in the Facility. The Agency is 
contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company in the 
form of exemptions from sales and use taxes during the construction 
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period and reduction of real property taxes that provides the Company 
will make payments-in-lieu-of-taxes (“PILOT Payments”) (a) during the 
construction period: in an amount equal to taxes calculated using the 
current assessed value of the Land; and (b) after the issuance of the 
first Certificate of Occupancy: annual fixed payments of $2,000,000 for 
forty (40) years, including scheduled incremental increases 
(collectively, the “Financial Assistance”), which PILOT Payments are a 
deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and will be 
allocated among the County, the City of Rome and the Rome City 
School District pursuant to the terms of an Agreement Allocating 
PILOT Payments, to be more particularly described in a Final 
Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing 
of the transactions described herein. 

 
4. Mr. Fitzgerald then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 

against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views. 

5. Mr. Fitzgerald then asked if there were any further comments, and, there 
being none, the hearing was closed at _____ a.m. 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 Tim Fitzgerald, Assistant Secretary 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on May 
__, 2025 at _____ a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441, 
with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true 
and correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend 
and public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, 
(ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an 
opportunity to be heard. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025. 
 

_________________________________ 
Secretary 
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EXHIBIT D 

Deviation Reasons 

 

1. The nature of the Company and the Facility:  The Company is a major manufacturer 
of dairy products that wishes to expand its presence in New York State, and the Agency 
wishes to support this industry. The Project is to be located on land owned by Oneida 
County, and the County is marketing the site for a project of this type. New York State 
has endorsed this site with the FAST NY designation, indicating the site has been 
identified as a priority for development. 

 
2. The economic condition of the area:  The Facility located in an area that has been 

designated an economic development zone (Empire Zone) pursuant to Article 18-B of 
the General Municipal Law, and is therefore located in a "highly distressed area" (as 
defined in Section 854(18) of the New York General Municipal Law).  Redevelopment of 
the former Griffiss AFB is a priority for state and local government officials. 

 
3. The extent to which financial assistance for the Facility will create or retain 

permanent, private sector jobs:  The Company has committed to creating 1,000 full 
time equivalent positions as a result of the Project. The Project will also create 1,500 
construction jobs. 

 
4. The estimated value of tax exemptions to be provided:  The Company has 

represented a predictable PILOT Payment is necessary to ensure the success of the 
Project. 

 
5. Impact of the proposed tax exemptions on affected tax jurisdictions:  The Land is 

owned by Oneida County and is currently tax exempt.  The PILOT Payments will 
generate significant revenue for the affected tax jurisdictions where no revenue is 
currently being generated. 

 
6. Impact on existing and proposed businesses and economic development 

projects in the vicinity:  The Company has demonstrated a history of strong support of 
the communities in which it operates. The Project is expected to attract new businesses 
and investment to the Griffiss Business Park and will also help existing businesses to 
grow and prosper. The Company is committed to purchasing goods from local sources, 
and the Project will provide significant support to the local agriculture industry. The 
Project is also expected to stimulate demand within the local housing market. 

 
7. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated:  The 

Company will invest $1.2 billion into the Project. 
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8. The extent to which additional sources of revenue for municipalities and school 
districts will be created:  The Land is not currently generating any tax revenue. The 
Project will generate additional tax revenues and/or PILOT payments. 

9. The extent to which redevelopment will provide a benefit (economic or otherwise) 
not otherwise available within the municipality:  The Project will not only provide 
economic benefits, it will also enhance the development of the Griffiss Business and 
Technology Park. The Project, once completed, will be the largest dairy manufacturing 
plant in the history of our country. A Project of this magnitude has the potential to 
transform the City of Rome and Oneida County. 
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Authorizing Resolution
Consent to Sale and Assignment 
126 Business Park LLC Facility

Date: May 2, 2025

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York at 8:00 a.m. on May 2, 2025, 
the following members of the Agency were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

Others Present: 
 

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced 
that among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain 
matters pertaining to the sale and assignment of a certain industrial development 
facility more particularly described below (126 Business Park, LLC Facility).

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and 
adopted with the following members voting:
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONSENT TO 
THE SALE OF THE 126 BUSINESS PARK, LLC FACILITY, THE 
ASSIGNMENT OF AGENCY LEASE DOCUMENTS TO 126 
BUSINESS PARK HOLDINGS, LLC AND TO EXECUTE RELATED 
DOCUMENTS.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the 
State of New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of 
New York (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and 
power among other things, to assist with the acquisition of certain industrial 
development projects as authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, 126 Business Park LLC (the “Assignor”) previously requested 
that the Agency provide certain financial assistance, consisting of exemptions from 
sales and use taxes and reduction of real property taxes (the “Financial 
Assistance”), for a project consisting of (a) renovation of an existing 23,557± square 
foot building (the “Existing Improvements”) situated on a 2.21± acre parcel of land 
located at 126 Business Park Drive, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York (the 
“Existing Land” and, together with the Existing Improvements the “Existing Facility”); 
(b) construction on the Existing Land and the recently acquired 0.57 ± acre parcel of 
land located at 2 Notre Dame Lane, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York (the 
“2020 Land” and together with the Existing Land, the “Land”) a parking lot and a 
16,000± square foot addition to the Existing Improvements (collectively, the “2020 
Improvements” and together with the Existing Improvements, the “Improvements”); 
and (c) acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of providing public adjusting and 
disaster preparedness and recovery services (the 2020 Land, the 2020 
Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as the “2020 Facility”, the 
Land, the Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility”) 
and the acquisition, construction, renovation and equipping of the Facility is referred 
to as the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Assignor leases the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement dated as of December 18, 2020 (the “Lease Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility back to the Assignor pursuant 
to a Leaseback Agreement dated as of December 18, 2020 (the “Leaseback 
Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Facility is the subject of that certain First Amended and 
Restated Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement by and between the Agency and 
Assignor, dated as of December 18, 2020 (the “PILOT Agreement”);
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WHEREAS, the Facility is the subject of that certain Environmental 
Compliance and Indemnification Agreement by and among the Agency Assignor, 
and Rising Phoenix Holding Corporation (the “Rising Phoenix Sublessee”) dated as 
of December 18, 2020 (the “Environmental Compliance Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Facility is the subject of that certain Job Creation and 
Recapture Agreement by and among the Agency, Assignor and the Rising Phoenix 
Sublessee, dated as of December 18, 2020 (the “Recapture Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, 126 Business Park Holdings, LLC (“Assignee”) is purchasing 
the Facility from Assignor pursuant to a Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase 
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, as part of the transaction contemplated in the Purchase 
Agreement, Assignor desires to assign to Assignee all of Assignor’s rights, title, 
interest, benefits and privileges in, under and to the Lease Agreement, the 
Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT Agreement, the Environmental Compliance 
Agreement and the Recapture Agreement (collectively referred to as the “Agency 
Lease Documents”); and

WHEREAS, based on information provided by the Assignor, the Assignor 
is in compliance with all conditions of the Agency Lease Documents; and

WHEREAS, based on information provided by the Assignee, the Assignee 
will continue to operate the Facility as presently operated by the Assignor; and

WHEREAS, the Assignor has requested the Agency consent to the sale of 
the Facility to the Assignee and to the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents 
from the Assignor to the Assignee, such that all Agency Lease Documents shall 
inure to the benefit of the Assignee and remain in full force and effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines:

(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and
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(b) Following the sale of the Facility and the assignment of the Agency 
Documents, the Facility will constitute a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; 
and

(c) The sale of the Facility from the Assignor to the Assignee and the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Assignor to the Assignee, will 
promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New York and improve 
their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and

(d) The sale of the Facility from the Assignor to the Assignee and the 
assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Assignor to the Assignee is 
reasonably necessary to induce the Assignee and/or the occupants of the Facility to 
maintain and expand its business operation in the State of New York; and

(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to consent to 
the sale of the Facility from the Assignor to the Assignee and the assignment of the 
Agency Lease Documents from the Assignor to the Assignee.

Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby 
determines to consent to sale of the Facility from the Assignor to the Assignee and 
the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the Assignor to the Assignee.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment of the sale of the Facility from the Assignor to 
the Assignee and the assignment of the Agency Lease Documents from the 
Assignor to the Assignee, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect 
to such sale, assignment and financing are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.

(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the 
Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver all 
documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, 
necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Closing Documents”).  The execution thereof by 
the Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any member of the Agency shall constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval.

(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency 
are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the 
Leaseback Agreement).
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Section 5.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all 
acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, 
and to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and 
documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts 
and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent 
acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to 
cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of 
the Closing Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 6.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting 
of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the 
resolutions contained therein, held on May 2, 2025 with the original thereof on file in 
my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the 
Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original 
insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice 
of said meeting, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law 
(Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public and public notice 
of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such 
Sections, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum 
present throughout.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 
2025.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By: ______________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 1 - Project Information 

Instructions for Completing 

Part 1 – Project Information.  The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1.  Responses become part of the 
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.  Complete Part 1 based on 
information currently available.  If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as 
thoroughly as possible based on current information. 

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the 
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item. 

Part 1 – Project and Sponsor Information 

Name of Action or Project: 

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map): 

Brief Description of Proposed Action: 

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: 

E-Mail:
Address: 

City/PO: State: Zip Code: 

1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance,
administrative rule, or regulation?

If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that 
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2.  If no, continue to question 2. 

NO YES 

2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency?
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval:

NO YES 

3. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action?     __________ acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed?     __________ acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor?     __________ acres 

4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:

Rural (non-agriculture)       Industrial        Commercial        Residential (suburban) 

 Aquatic   Other(Specify):Agriculture

□  Urban

□  Forest 

SEAF 2019

Parkland

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90156.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90178.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90533.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90533.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90380.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90390.html
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5. Is the proposed action,

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

NO YES N/A 

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?
NO YES 

7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identify: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

8. a.    Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?

b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?

c. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

NO YES 

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

NO YES 

10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply?

If No, describe method for providing potable water: _________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities?

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment: ______________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

NO YES 

13. a.   Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres: _____________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90444.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90444.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90449.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90454.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90470.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90492.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90497.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90507.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90517.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90517.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90512.html
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14. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

□Shoreline     □ Forest       Agricultural/grasslands        Early mid-successional

Wetland       □ Urban       Suburban 

15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or
Federal government as threatened or endangered?

NO YES 

16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan? NO YES 

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?

If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment:______________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________

_ 

NO YES 

19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid waste
management facility?

If Yes, describe: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or
completed)            for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe: _______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE 

    Date: _____________________ Applicant/sponsor/name: ____________________________________________________ __________________________   

Signature: _____________________________________________________Title:__________________________________

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90194.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90545.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90545.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90565.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90575.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90580.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90580.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90585.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90585.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90590.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90590.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90595.html
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            Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Project:

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 2 - Impact Assessment

Part 2 is to be completed by the Lead Agency.
Answer all of the following questions in Part 2 using the information contained in Part 1 and other materials submitted by 
the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer.  When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by 
the concept “Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context of the proposed action?”    

No, or  

small 

impact 

may 

occur   

Moderate 

to large 

impact 

may 

occur 

1.  Will the proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning
regulations?

2. Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

5. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or
affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walkway?

6. Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities?

7. Will the proposed action impact existing:
a. public / private water supplies?

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

8. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological,
architectural or aesthetic resources?

9. Will the proposed action  result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands,
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)?

10. Will the proposed action  result in an  increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage
problems?

11. Will the proposed action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health?

SEAF 2019

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90161.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91098.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91098.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91103.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91399.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91404.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91404.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91414.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91414.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91419.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91419.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91424.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91429.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91429.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91434.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91434.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91439.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91439.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91444.html
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For every question in Part 2 that was answered “moderate to large impact may occur”, or if there is a need to explain why a 
particular element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please 
complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that 
have been included by the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts.  Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency 
determined that the impact may or will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting, 
probability of occurring, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude.  Also consider the potential for short-
term, long-term and cumulative impacts. 

Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,  
that the  proposed  action  may  result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an 
environmental impact statement is required. 
Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation, 
that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts. 

_________________________________________________ _______________________________________________ 
Name of Lead Agency Date 

_________________________________________________ _______________________________________________ 
 Print or Type Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer 

_________________________________________________ _______________________________________________ 
Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) 

Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 3 Determination of Significance

        Agency Use Only [If applicable]
Project:

Date:

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90166.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91455.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91455.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91460.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91460.html


RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF 126 BUSINESS PARK 
HOLDINGS LLC WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT 
EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT

WHEREAS, 126 Business Park Holdings LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of 126 Business Park Holdings LLC and/or an entity formed or to be formed 
on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has requested the 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) assist with a project 
consisting of acquisition and renovation of three (3) interconnected buildings totaling 
approximately 40,000 square feet (the “Improvements”) situated on a 4± acre parcel of 
land located at 126 Business Park Drive, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York (the 
“Project Location”); and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements 
(the “Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of retaining employment in Oneida 
County by providing desirable space to two tenants that provide back office operations 
(the Project Location, the Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as 
the “Facility” and the acquisition, renovation and equipping of the Facility is referred to 
collectively as the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the Project may have a 
"significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is defined in the SEQR Act 
and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of an environmental impact 
statement; and

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Agency has reviewed documentation 
including a Short Environmental Assessment Form (“EAF”) dated March 24, 2025 
prepared by the Applicant, which is on file at the office of the Agency, and such other 
documentation as the Agency has deemed appropriate; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined such 
documentation in order to make a determination as to the potential environmental 
significance of the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, and 
based further upon the Agency’s knowledge of the area surrounding the Project 



Location and such further investigation of the Project and its environmental effects as 
the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the following findings and 
determinations with respect to the Project:

(A) The Project is as described in the Application;

(B) The Project constitutes an "Unlisted Action" (as defined in 
the Regulations);

(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 
noted in the documents pertaining to the Project, including the EAF, and none 
are known to the Agency;

(D) The Project will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 
existing air quality (including greenhouse gases); ground or surface water quality 
or quantity, traffic or noise levels; a substantial increase in solid waste 
production; or a substantial increase in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or 
drainage problems; (ii) the removal or destruction of large quantities of vegetation 
or fauna; substantial interference with the movement of a resident or migratory 
fish or wildlife species; impacts on a significant habitat area; substantial adverse 
impacts on threatened or endangered species of animals or plants, or the habitat 
of such species; or (iii) other significant adverse impacts to natural resources; 

(E) The Project will not affect a critical environmental area as 
designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g); 

(F) The Project will not conflict with the community's current 
plans or goals as officially approved or adopted;

(G) The Project will not result in the impairment of the character 
or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character; 

(H) The Project will not result in a major change in the use of 
either the quantity or type of energy;

(I) The Project will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health;

(J) The Project will not result in a substantial change in the use, 
or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses;



(K) The Project will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 
large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 
to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action;

(L) The Project will not result in the creation of a material 
demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences; 

(M) The Project will not result in changes in two or more 
elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and

(N) The Project will not result in two or more related actions 
undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 
a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).  

Section 2. The Agency hereby determines that the Project will not have 
a significant impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation 
of an environmental impact statement with respect to the Project.  The Agency has 
prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Project which describes the basis for 
its decision that the Project will not have a significant impact on the environment.  

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency’s records the negative declaration with respect to the Project.

Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally]



STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Agency 
duly convened in public session on May 2, 2025, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New 
York at which the following members were:

Members Present: 
Members Present Virtually: 

EDGE Staff Present: 
EDGE Staff Present Virtually: 

Others Present: 
Others Present Webex: 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows:

Voting Aye Voting Nay

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.



I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all directors of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open 
Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the 
time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103a 
and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum 
present throughout.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of the _____ day of 
__________________ 2025.

_________________________________
            Shawna Papale, Secretary



 TERMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE  

Board Summary – May 2, 2025  

Company: 126 Business Park Holdings LLC  

Description of Project: Purchase of 126 Business Park Drive, Utica, from 126 Business 
Park LLC. Interior improvements and furniture/fixture purchases.  

Project Cost: $ 4,976,509  

126 Business Park Holdings LLC is a real estate holding firm that is proposing to purchase 
and renovate the existing office building at 126 Business Park Drive, Utica, from the existing 
owner 126 Business Park LLC. The renovation of this building will retain tenant Tidal Basin 
and its 46 employees, and bring in new tenant BPAs and its 78 existing employees. The 
project will also result in 11 new employees being hired at BPAs. Both of these firms are 
within the finance and insurance industry. Although BPAs currently has offices elsewhere in 
Oneida County, they have informed the prospective new owner that they are in need of new 
office space, and that without quality space at a reasonable price, they will consolidate their 
Utica operations into Syracuse. Furthermore, Tidal Basin has stated that without securing a 
cost-effective lease rate at 126 Business Park Drive, they would likely consolidate its Utica 
operation into its headquarters in Alexandria, VA. The proposed benefit is critical to retaining 
124 jobs in Oneida County. 

Type of Facility: Financial Back Office  

Request for Financial Assistance  

PILOT Value estimated at $ 635,386.99  

The property already benefits from a PILOT agreement, and the existing project is in Year 5 of 
its 10-year PILOT schedule. The proposed project will result in a new 10-year PILOT following 
the Agency’s standard industrial PILOT schedule. While this will result in a totally new project 
for State reporting purposes, the net new PILOT value being offered, compared to the 
benefits in place under the existing PILOT, is estimated at $358,986.66. 

Mortgage recording tax exemption valued at $ 34,125  

Sales tax exemption valued at $ 13,125  

Affected Tax Jurisdictions: County of Oneida; City of Utica; Utica City School District,  

Obligations for Financial Assistance  

Current FTEs to be retained at the Facility: 124 

FTEs to be created at the Facility: 11 



(1) Updated:  January 14, 2025

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
584 Phoenix Drive 

Rome, New York 13441-1405 
(315) 338-0393 telephone

(315) 338-5694 fax

Please submit the signed and notarized completed application (Pages 1-25 ONLY), which 
must include any applicable addendum or supplemental information requested in the 
application, along with payment of a non-refundable $500 Application Fee ($5,000 for Solar 
applications) and a $1,000  Commitment Fee (will be applied to final closing costs) to the 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome NY 13441-1405, 
within 14 days prior to the OCIDA Board of Directors meeting at which you want the 
Application to be included on the Agenda. Wire transfer and ACH payments are 
acceptable but all related fees incurred by the Agency are payable by the Applicant. An 
electronic version of the application must accompany the original application via physical media 
or e-mail.

Project Name 

Date of Submission 

https://www.oneidacountyida.org/

Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director
spapale@mvedge.org



Important Notes to Applicant: 

Upon the submission of this application to the OCIDA, the application becomes a public 
document. Be advised that any action brought before the Agency is public information. All 
agendas for the OCIDA are issued publicly prior to the full agency meeting. Upon the submission 
of this application to the OCIDA, the application becomes a public document and OCIDA is 
required by law to post on its website and make available to the public this Application and 
supporting materials. If when completing this Application, you deem any information to be 
specifically exempted from disclosure under Article Six of the Public Officers Law, please answer 
the question “This information is deemed to be exempt from disclosure under Article Six of the 
Public Officers Law and is submitted on the attached confidential addendum.” It is acceptable to 
submit any confidential addendum electronically as a .pdf file separate from the application, but 
any confidential addendum must still be submitted with the hard copy of the full application 
(see Page 1).  Please answer any such questions on a separate Addendum titled, “Confidential 
and Protected by Article Six of the Public Officers Law.” If OCIDA is challenged to produce any 
information the Applicant identifies as protected, the Applicant will be required at its sole cost 
to defend such assertion on behalf of OCIDA. 

The information requested by this application is necessary to determine the eligibility of your 
project for OCIDA benefits. Please answer all questions and respond “Not Applicable”, “NA”, or 
“none” where appropriate. If you’re response is an estimate, please indicate so. Attach 
additional sheets if more space is needed for a response. All applications must include a 
completed and signed NYS SEQR form and Cost Benefit Analysis form (please consult with 
OCIDA) before the application is considered complete. 

By signing and submitting this Application, the Applicant acknowledges that it received a copy 
of the Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and the Oneida County IDA Penalty for Failure to Meet 
Employment Levels as adopted by the Agency and Agency Memorandums pertaining to the 
benefits of projects financed through the Agency. 

A project financed through the Agency involves the preparation and execution of significant 
legal documents. Please consult with an attorney before signing any documents in connection 
with the proposed project. You will receive an engagement letter from the OCIDA legal counsel. 
You will be asked to sign the engagement letter acknowledging you will be responsible for all 
legal fees of OCIDA legal counsel and that you understand the process. Should you not close 
and legal services have been rendered by the OCIDA legal counsel, Applicant will be responsible 
for those costs. 

If your project requires a public hearing, a representative of the applicant is required to be 
present. A date will be coordinated by the OCIDA legal counsel. 

If you have any questions how to calculate the OCIDA’s application fee please refer to the 
enclosed Memorandum to Companies -Sale Leaseback Transactions or contact the OCIDA. 

(2)
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Part I:  Applicant Information 

Note:   In responding to the following questions, please keep in mind that the Applicant will  
be  party to all of the documents and is the individual or if entity will be formed which will  
receive the actual financial assistance from the Agency. 

Applicant 

1(a)  Applicant’s Legal Name: 

1(b) Principal Address: 

1(c) Telephone/Facsimile Numbers: 

1(d)  Email Address: 

1(e)  Secondary Email Address

 1(f) Contact Person: 

1(g)  Is the Applicant a [ ] Corporation: 
If Yes, Public [  ] Private [ ]
If public, on which exchange is it listed? 

[ ] Subchapter S 
[ ]  Sole Proprietorship 
[ ]  General Partnership 
[ ] Limited Partnership 
[ ] Limited Liability Corporation/Partnership 
[ ] Single-Member LLC (name and EIN below): 

Name:

[ ] DISC 
[ ] Other(specify)  

1(h) State of Organization (if applicable) 

 
 

EIN #:
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Applicant’s Stockholders, Members, Directors and Officers, Partners. 

2(a)  Provide the following information with respect to any person with 15% or more in
equity holdings in any entity in ownership chain of the project. Add additional sheets if necessary.

Percentage of 
Name Address Ownership 

2(b)  Is the Applicant, or any of the individuals listed in 2(a) above, related directly or indirectly  
to any other entity by more than 50% common ownership? If Yes, indicate name 
of such entity and the relationship.        Yes         No

2(c) Is the Applicant affiliated with any other entity, directly or indirectly, other than as listed in 
the response to 2(a) above? If Yes, please indicate name and relationship of 
such other entity and the address thereof:        Yes         No
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Applicant’s Counsel and Accountant 

3(a) Applicant’s Attorney 

Name/Title: 

Firm: 

Address: 

Telephone/Fax: 

Email: 

3(b) Applicant’s Accountant 

Name/Title: 

Firm: 

Address: 

Telephone/Fax: 

Email: 

Business Description 

4(a) Describe the nature of your business and principal products and/or services. 
Attach additional sheets if necessary. 
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Part II:  Project Information 

5(a) Explain your project in detail. This description should include explanation of all 
activities which will occur due to this project. Attach additional sheets if necessary. 

Reasons for Project 

6(a) Please explain in detail why you want to undertake this project. 

6(b) Why are you requesting the involvement of the Agency in your project? 
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6(c)   Please confirm by checking the box below, if there is the likelihood that the Project 
would not be undertaken BUT FOR the Financial Assistance provided by the Agency.

Yes  No 

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the 
Agency, ("No" is checked above) then provide a statement in the space provided
below indicating why the Agency should approve the requested assistance:

How will the Applicant’s plans be affected or scaled back if Agency approval is not granted? 

6(d) Is the proposed project reasonably necessary to discourage the Applicant from removing 
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State of New York? 
[ ]Yes   [     ] No    If Yes, please explain briefly.

6(e) Will financing by the Agency result in the removal or abandonment of a plant or other 
facility of the applicant or any related entity presently located in another area of New York 
State? 
[     ] Yes      [     ] No 

If Yes, is the proposed project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive 
position of the Applicant in its respective industry?   [     ]  Yes     [     ]  No 

If Yes, please provide a statement and evidence supporting the same. Include the name 
of all taxing jurisdictions in which the abandoned facility or plant lies, and 
whether Applicant has had any discussions with said taxing jurisdictions 
regarding the abandonment. Please provide as much detail as possible. 
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6(f) Has the Applicant or any related entity previously secured financial assistance in Oneida 
County (whether through the Agency, the Empire State Development Corporation, or any 
other entity) ?     [     ]  Yes      [     ]  No 

If Yes, please explain (indicate date of benefit, location of facility and outstanding
balance). 

6(g) Has the Applicant or any related entity secured financial assistance anywhere within the 
United States within the last 90 days or does the Applicant or any related entity anticipate 
receiving financial assistance within the next 90 days?     [     ]  Yes      [     ] No 
If Yes, please explain.

6(h)  Check all categories best describing the  type  of project for all end users at project   

site (you may check more than one; if checking more than one indicate percentage of 
square footage the use represents): 

Manufacturing 

Industrial Assembly or Service 

Back office operations 

Research and Development 

Technology/Cybersecurity 

Warehousing 

Commercial or Recreational 

Retail 

Please provide percentage of sq. footage for
each use (if more than one category): 

 Residential housing (specify) 

 Pollution Control (specify) 

 Environmental (e.g., Brownfield) (specify) 

Other (specify ie; renewable energy)

%
%

%

%

%

%

%
%

%
%

%

%

Add Housing Addendum

Add Solar Addendum

mvemkaucher
Highlight



6(i) Check all categories best describing the scope of the project: 
[ ] Acquisition of land 

[ ] Acquisition of existing building 

[ ] Renovations to existing building 

[ ] Construction of addition to existing building 

[ ] Demolition of existing building or part of building

[ ] Construction of a new building 

[ ] Acquisition of machinery and/or equipment 

[ ] Installation of machinery and/or equipment 

[ ] Other (specify) 

6(j)   Please indicate the financial assistance you are requesting of the Agency, and provide  
the estimated value of said assistance. Attach a sheet labeled Annual PILOT that shows 
the annual utilization of the Real Property Tax Abatement by year and by 
taxing jurisdiction (PLEASE CONSULT WITH IDA STAFF ON PILOT CALCULATIONS).

Assistance Requested

[ ] Fill-in Real Property Tax Abatement (value of PILOT savings):  $

Estimated Values

[ ] Mortgage Tax Exemption (.75%) $ 

Amount of mortgage: $  

[ ] Sales and Use Tax Exemption ** (8.75%) $  

Value of goods/services to be exempted from sales tax: $ 

[ ] Issuance by the Agency of Tax Exempt Bonds(bond dollar value)$

Is the financial assistance requested by the Applicant consistent with the IDA’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy?    Yes            No 

If No, please provide a written statement describing the financial assistance being requested 
and detailing the reasons the IDA should consider deviating from its Policy. 

**  Note  that  the  estimate  provided  above  will  be  provided  to  the  New  York  State  Department of Taxation  and 
Finance. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents will include a covenant by the Applicant  that the 
estimate, above,  represents  the  maximum  amount  of  sales  and  use  tax  benefit  currently  authorized  by the  
Agency  with respect to this Application.  The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the   (9)proposed total 
Project  Costs  as  contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered. It  is the 
responsibility of the applicant to inform the IDA within 10 days if the project amount changes. 

TOTAL EXEMPTION ASSISTANCE REQUESTED:

(9)

 (Not available for solar)

**

(fill-in)

(fill-in)
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Part III: Facility Information 

7(a) Street Address of Facility: 

7(b) City, Town and/or Village (list ALL incorporated municipalities): 

7(c) School District: 

Attach copies of the most recent real property tax bills. Include  copies  for 
all taxing jurisdictions for the site/ facility that IDA assistance is being       sought. 

Facility (Physical Information) If multiple locations please provide information on 
all. 

7(d) For what purpose was the facility site most recently used (i.e., light manufacturing, heavy 
manufacturing, assembly, etc.)? 

7(e) Zoning Classification of location of the project: 

7(f) Please describe in detail the facility to be acquired, constructed or renovated (including
number of buildings, square footage, number of floors, type of construction,) and attach 
plot plans, photos or renderings, if available. If there are infrastructure improvements 
(water, sewer, gas, electrical, etc.) please provide details along with who will carry out 
those improvements and who will fund them. Please be as specific as possible. 
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7(g) Has construction or renovation commenced? [ ]Yes [ ]No 

If Yes, please describe the work in detail that has been undertaken to date, including the
date of commencement. 

If No, indicate the estimated dates of commencement and completion: 

Construction Commencement:

Construction completion: 

7(h) Will the construction or operation of the facility or any activity which will occur at the 
site require any local ordinance or variance to be obtained or require a permit or prior approval of 
any state or federal agency or body (other than normal occupancy and/or construction permits)?

Yes No N/A 

If Yes, please provide the Agency with a copy of the planning department approval  
along with the related State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR) determination. If no, 
please provide the status of approval: 

7(i) Will the project have a significant effect on the environment?  [ ]No 

Important: please attach and sign Part 1 of either the the long or short Environmental 
Assessment Form to this Application. 

years 7(j) What is the useful life of the facility?

7(k) Is the site in a former Empire Zone? [ ]Yes  [ ]No

]Yes   [ No 
If Yes, which Empire Zone:
Is project located in a Federal HUB Zone or distressed area: [ 
Provide detail. 

Yes No

If Yes, please describe.

Has the Project received site plan approval from the Planning Department?

]Yes 
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ALL APPLICANTS MUST ANSWER PART IV-8(a)
Part IV: Retail Project Questionnaire
To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the 
Agency requires additional information if the proposed Project is one where customers 
personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase 
services. 

8(a). Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the cost to be financed from
equity or other sources) consist of facilities or property that are or will be primarily used in
making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

Yes or If the answer is YES, please continue below.
If the answer is  NO,  proceed to Section Part V - Facility (Legal Info)

For purposes of Question A, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor 
under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Tax Law”) primarily 
engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 
1101(b)(4)(i) of the Tax Law), or (ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit 
the Project. 

8(b). What percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the
project? %. If the answer is less than 33% do not complete the
remainder of this retail determination page and proceed to next section, Part V
Facility (Pg 13)

If the answer to A above is Yes AND the answer to B above is greater than 33.33%, indicate
which of the following questions below apply to the project: 

1. Will the project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation Yes      No 

2. Is the Project location or facility likely to attract a significant number of visitors from
outside Oneida County?

Yes  No 

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis or other documentation supporting 
your response. 

3. Is the predominant purpose of the project to make available goods or services which
would not, but for the project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the
municipality within which the proposed project would be located because of a lack of
reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such goods or services?

Yes  No 

If yes, please provide a third party market analysis that demonstrates that a majority of 
the project’s customers are expected to come from outside of Oneida County and the 
project will not directly compete with existing businesses located in Oneida County. 

NoRequired

*
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] 

Part V: Facility (Legal Information)

9(a) With respect to the present owner of the land or facility, please give the following 
information and provide a brief statement regarding the status of the acquisition. 

(Note:    the present owner is not necessarily the user of the facility, but that party which holds legal title to the facility.) 

Legal Name: 

Address: 

Telephone: 

Balance of Mortgage: 

Holder of Mortgage: 

If the Applicant is not the present owner of the facility, please attach any 
written agreements and contracts concerning the acquisition of the real property 
and/or equipment. 

9(b) Is there a legal relationship, directly or indirectly, by virtue of common control  or through
related persons, between the Applicant and the present owner of the facility? 
[   ]  Yes   [   ] No.   If Yes, please explain.

9(c) Will a related real estate holding company, partnership or other entity, be involved  in the
ownership structure of the transaction? 
[   ]  Yes   [      No. If Yes, please explain.

9(d) Will the title owner of the facility/property also be the user of the facility?
[ ] Yes [ ]  No     If Yes, please explain.
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9(e) Is the Applicant currently a tenant in the facility? [ ]  Yes [ ] No 

9(f) Are you planning to use the entire proposed facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No 

If No, please give the following information with respect to tenant(s) which will
remain in the facility after the completion of the project, including the square 
footage the Applicant will occupy: 

Name of Tenant Floors Occupied Nature of BusinessSq. Ft. Occupied

9(g) Are any of the tenants related to the owner of the facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No  

9(h) Will there be any other users utilizing the facility?
[ ]  Yes [ ] No 
If Yes, please explain. Provide detail of the contractual arrangement
including any financial exchange for the use of the site or property. 

Part VI: Equipment

10(a)  List the principal items or categories of equipment to be acquired as part of the project.
If you are requesting sales tax exemption it is important to be as detailed as possible. (If 
a complete list is not available at time of application, as soon as one is available but prior 
to final authorizing resolution, please submit a detailed inventory of said equipment to be 
covered.) Attach a sheet if needed. 

10(b)  Please provide a brief description of any equipment which has already been purchased
or ordered, attach all invoices and purchase orders, list amounts paid and dates of 
expected delivery.  Attach a sheet if needed. 

10(c) What is the useful life of the equipment? years 

If Yes, please explain.



11(c) Have you experienced any employment changes (+ or -) in the last three (3) years?

assistance is granted.

(15)

Number of Jobs 
BEFORE Project 

Location 
1 

Location 
2 

Location 
3 

Location 
4 

Location 
5 

Total 
Address in NYS 

Full-Time Company 
Full-Time Independent 
Contractors 
Full-Time Leased 

Total Full-Time BEFORE 

Part-Time Company 
Part-Time Independent 
Contractors 
Part-Time Leased 

Total FTE Part-Timers BEFORE 

Continued on next page

Part VII: Employment Information
"FTE" shall mean a full time employee that has a minimum of thirty-five (35) scheduled hours per week, or any 
combination of two or more part-time employees that work a minimum of fifteen (15) scheduled hours per week, 
when combined together, constitute the equivalent of a minimum of thirty-five (35) scheduled hours per week, and 
whose workplace location is the project facility. For this purpose an employee shall include a leased employee 
regularly retained by the company.

11(a) Estimate how many construction jobs will be created or retained as a result of this project.

11(b) Will the project preserve permanent, private sector jobs or increase the overall number of
permanent, private sector jobs in the State of New York?

No Yes  If Yes, explain below.

11(d) Job Information related to project ***
Estimate below how many jobs will be created and retained as a result of this project, if OCIDA 

Total FTE BEFORE*
*For Total FTE BEFORE add full-time employees (line A) plus part-time employees that have been converted to FTE (line B).

A.

B.

PLEASE MAKE SURE TOTAL PART-TIME EMPLOYEES ARE TURNED 
INTO FULL-TIME EQUIVALENTS (FTE) for Line B. - See Pg. 17.  

Yes  No If Yes, explain below.

C.
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Number of Jobs AFTER 
Project (within 3 years 
of project completion) 

Location 
1 

Location 
2 

Location 
3 

Location 
4 

Location 
5 

Total 
Full-time Company 
Full-Time Independent 
Contractors 
Full-Time Leased 

Total Full-Time AFTER 

Part-Time Company 
Part-Time Independent 
Contractors 

Part-Time Leased 

Total FTE Part-Timers AFTER

Estimate the number of 
residents from the 
Labor Market Area** in 
which the Project is 
located that will fill the 
JOBS CREATED within
three years of project 
completion 

Location 
1 

Location 
2 

Location 
3 

Location 
4 

Location 
5 

Total 
Full-Time 

FTE Part-Timers
Total  AFTER 

Jobs Continued on next page

Total FTE AFTER *
*For Total FTE AFTER add full-time employees (line A) plus part-time employees that have been converted to FTE (line B).   

A.

B.

** Labor Market Area includes Oneida, Lewis, Herkimer, and Madison Counties 

Provide Any Notes To Job Information Below

C.

A.
B.
C.
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Retained Jobs Created Jobs 

SALARY AND BENEFITS 
Average 
Annual 
Salary
per 
employee

Average 
Fringe 

Benefits 
(as a 

percentage of 
wages) 

Average
Annual 
Salary
per 
employee

Average 
Fringe 

Benefits 
(as a 

percentage 
of wages) 

Management $ % $ % 
Administrative $ % $ % 
Production $ % $ % 
Independent Contractor $ % $ % 
Other $ % $ % 
Overall Weighted Average $ % $ % 

*** By statute, Agency staff must project the number of Full-Time Jobs that would be 
retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is granted. "FTE" shall 
mean a full time employee that has a minimum of thirty-five (35) scheduled hours per 
week, or any combination of two or more part-time employees that work a minimum 
of fifteen (15) scheduled hours per week, when combined together, constitute the 
equivalent of a minimum of thirty-five (35) scheduled hours per week, and whose 
workplace location is the project facility. For this purpose an employee shall include a 
leased employee regularly retained by the company.

11(e) Please list NAICS codes for the jobs affiliated with this project:
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Part VIII:  Estimated Project Cost and Financing

12(a)  List the costs necessary for preparing the facility.

Site preparation/parking lot construction

$

Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION

$

Existing Building(s) RENOVATION

$

NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION

$

Installation costs

$

Machinery & Equipment that is TAXABLE

$Furniture & Fixtures

$

Architectural & Engineering

Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel) $

Financial (all costs related to project financing)* $

Permits (describe below) $

Other (describe below) ie: solar decommissioning expense) $

       $Subtotal

Agency Fee1 $ 

Total Project Cost  $

$

* Bank fees, title insurance, appraisals, environmental reviews, etc.
1 See Attached Fee Schedule (Page 22) for Agency Fee amount to be placed on this line.

Permit/Other Information

12(b) Has the Applicant contacted any bank, financial institution or private investor with respect 
to financing the proposed project?      Yes                No     If Yes, please provide details below.

$

LAND Acquisition $

Machinery & Equipment that is TAX-EXEMPT

12(c) Has the Applicant received a commitment letter for said financing? If Yes, please provide a copy along 
with this application.                                 Yes                    No

Other:
1. 
2.
3.
4.
5.

Cost:

(If lease value use OTHER below) 



(19)

12(d)  Sources of Funds for Project Costs

Bank Financing: ------------------------------------------------------------- $

Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits) -- $

$

$

Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable) --------------------------

Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable) -------------------------------

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal tax 
credits and grants) Break out individually below.------------------ $

Identify each Public state and federal grant/credit:

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $ 

Part IX: Real Estate Taxes
13(a) For each tax parcel which comprises the facility, and for which assistance is being sought, please 
provide the following information using figures from the most recent tax year. If an increase in the 
assessment is anticipated due to the proposed project, please indicate the new estimated assessment 
amount in the POST- PROJECT column. Attach copies of the most recent tax bills for all jurisdictions.

Tax Map Parcel #

Current
Land
Assessment

Current
Total Taxes 
Amount ($)

Current 
Total 
Assessment

Current
Building
Assessment

$

$

$

$

Comments:

Estimated
Post-Project 
Assessment 

13(b) Will the entirety of each tax parcel be subject to the PILOT?          YES         NO

13(c) If the entirety of each parcel will not be subject to the PILOT, will the 
municipality require a subdivision?            YES            NO

*If a subdivision is required, it is the responsibility of the Applicant to complete subdivision
approval prior to commencement of the PILOT Agreement, and to provide the Agency with the
tax parcel number(s) assigned.

Source

Source

Source

Source

mvemkaucher
Highlight

mvemkaucher
Highlight

mvemkaucher
Highlight
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13(d)  Address of Receiver of Town and/or Village Taxes (include all jurisdictions):

13(e)   Address of Receiver of School Taxes:

Please consult with Agency staff to complete a Cost/Benefit Analysis form to attach to this
Application. 

Has the current property owner or user been granted an Ag-District exemption on the
tax map parcel anytime during the past 4 years?

13(f)

Yes No

If Yes explain below.

13(g)

Use space below for additional information





 

 

Dear Mr. Fitzgerald: 

Over the past several decades, Tidal Basin and Adjusters International/Rising Phoenix have 
called Utica home; at our peak employing over 100 people locally.  In 2023, Rising Phoenix and 
Tidal Basin were sold to a private equity firm based in Alexandria, VA. At the time, senior 
management decided to keep a presence in the Mohawk Valley and retain the Utica office as our 
Corporate Headquarters.  During the last several months the building was listed for sale and 
most recently put under contract with Lahinch Group.  Our team has discussed two options; keep 
our current office operations in the Mohawk Valley or close the Business Park Drive location and 
merge our Utica office with a larger metropolitan location. 

 Our existing PILOT benefits are nearly exhausted, and full-assessment tax payments would 
exceed $4.00 per square foot—making the proposed lease financially unviable, as 100% of the 
tax burden would be passed to the tenants.  In order to stay in Utica and commit to a long-term 
lease with Lahinch Group, I ask that OCIDA create a new PILOT that will help save nearly 50 
jobs from relocating outside of New York State. 

 I hope the County and OCIDA recognize the significant economic impact and the importance 
of retaining our business within Oneida County. I appreciate your time and consideration. 

Thank you, 

 

Frank C. Sardelli 
EVP, Chief Financial Officer 
Tidal Basin 
 

 

Date: April 24, 2025 

 

Mr. Tim Fitzgerald 
Vice President Economic Development 
Mohawk Valley EDGE 
584 Phoenix Drive 
Rome, NY 13441 
 

 

Re: 126 Business Park Drive, Utica NY  



 

 
 
April 25, 2025 
 
 
Mr. Tim Fitzgerald 
Vice President Economic Development 
Mohawk Valley EDGE 
584 Phoenix Drive 
Rome, NY 13441 
 
Re: 126 Business Park Drive, Utica NY 
 
Dear Mr. Fitzgerald: 
  
 BPAS has proudly called Utica home for several decades. Today, we employ 78 full-time professionals in the 
region, with ambitious plans to grow that number over the next ten years. As part of our long-term strategic planning, 
we recently conducted a comprehensive evaluation of our office footprint in the Mohawk Valley. That study confirmed 
the need for a new office environment to support our client’s needs as well as employee satisfaction, recruitment, and 
retention. 
 While BPAS operates successfully in numerous markets across the United States and Puerto Rico, our ability 
to continue expanding operations in Utica hinges on access to high-quality office space. The opportunity to lease Class 
A office space at 126 Business Park Drive, under contract to be acquired by the Lahinch Group, presents an ideal 
solution. Properties of this caliber, paired with best-in-class ownership, are rare in the current office market. 
 In addition to BPAS’s growth plans, our parent company, Community Financial System, Inc. (CFSI), is actively 
considering expanding its presence in the Utica market. CFSI would also occupy a portion of the proposed space at 126 
Business Park Drive, further strengthening the economic benefits of this lease. 
 However, as the PILOT agreement on the property nears expiration, the projected property taxes—exceeding 
$4.00 per square foot—would render the lease financially unfeasible. The full tax burden would be passed through to 
the tenants, creating a significant barrier to moving forward. 
 To preserve our presence in Utica and commit to a long-term lease with Lahinch Group, we respectfully request 
that OCIDA consider a new PILOT agreement. This support would help retain approximately 78 high-quality jobs in 
Oneida County and enable future expansion of both BPAS and CFSI in the region. 
 We appreciate your consideration and hope the County and OCIDA will recognize the substantial economic 
value of keeping our growing business rooted in the Mohawk Valley. 
 
Thank you, 
 

Albert Giannino 
 
Albert Giannino 
Vice President, Director of Real Estate and Facilities 
Community Bank Financial System, Inc. 
5790 Widewaters Parkway 
Dewitt, NY 13214 

 



2024 Assessment
Est. New Assessment
Div. 1000
Current PILOT Payment
2025 Full Tax
2025 PILOT
2025 Net Benefit

New PILOT PILOT Full Tax PILOT Full Tax PILOT Full Tax Proposed PILOT
 (Current Year 4) 2025 57,522.17$     57,522.17$     30,748.72$        30,748.72$       36,926.28$     111,897.83$            

(New Year 1) 2026 58,672.61$     58,672.61$     31,363.70$        31,363.70$       37,664.81$     114,135.78$            33%
(New Year 2) 2027 59,846.06$     59,846.06$     31,990.97$        31,990.97$       38,418.10$     116,418.50$            33%
(New Year 3) 2028 61,042.99$     61,042.99$     32,630.79$        32,630.79$       39,186.47$     118,746.87$            33%
(New Year 4) 2029 62,263.85$     62,263.85$     33,284.11$        33,284.11$       39,970.20$     121,121.81$            33%
(New Year 5) 2030 63,509.12$     63,509.12$     33,949.79$        33,949.79$       40,769.60$     123,544.24$            33%
(New Year 6) 2031 64,779.31$     64,779.31$     34,628.79$        34,628.79$       84,430.14$     126,015.13$            67%
(New Year 7) 2032 66,074.89$     66,074.89$     35,321.36$        35,321.36$       86,118.74$     128,535.43$            67%
(New Year 8) 2033 67,396.39$     67,396.39$     36,027.79$        36,027.79$       87,841.11$     131,106.14$            67%
(New Year 9) 2034 68,744.32$     68,744.32$     36,748.35$        36,748.35$       89,597.94$     133,728.26$            67%

(New Year 10) 2035 70,119.20$     70,119.20$     37,483.31$        37,483.31$       91,389.89$     136,402.83$            67%
699,970.91$   699,970.91$  374,177.69$      374,177.69$    635,386.99$   1,249,754.98$         

Remaining 2021 Project Benefit 276,400.33$   
Total NEW (extended) PILOT value 635,386.99$   
Net NEW Benefit 358,986.66$   

Addition 2Addition 1 (Ended 2024)
1,537,200$                                                 

1,593.2$                                                      
33%

422,800$                                               

437.8$                                                    
100%

317.19-1-11
790,000$                                          

819$                                                    
100%

57,522.17$                                      

74,971.54$                                                 

819,000$                                          437,800$                                               1,593,200$                                                 

30,748.72$                                           
30,748.72$                                           

-$                                                          
57,522.17$                                      

-$                                                     

111,897.83$                                              
36,926.28$                                                 



Date 4/24/2025
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: 126 Business Park Holdings LLC

Description of Project: Purchase/renovation of professional office space

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of BPAs, Tidal Basin
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant: Joseph Gehm
Ronald Cuccaro

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced Back office financial operations
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project: October, 2025

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds

X Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
X Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement
X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY



C

Project Costs
Land Acquisition -$                     
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION 4,400,000$           
Existing Building(S) RENOVATION 300,000$              
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION -$                     
Installation Costs -$                     
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction -$                     
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture) -$                     
Furniture & Fixtures 100,000$              
Architectural & Engineering -$                     
Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel) 50,000$                
Financial (all costs related to project financing) 100,000$              
Permits 1,750$                  
Other -$                     
Agency Fee 24,759$                
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT 4,976,509$           

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount: -$                     
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 124 71,667$                              
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years) 11 71,667$                              
Retained Jobs 124 71,667$                              

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant 71,667$                
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$                
Average of Construction Jobs 32,000$                

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 5

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 2,365,011$           100,513$                            
Existing 26,660,124$         1,133,055$                         

Indirect Jobs
Created 2,062,500$           87,656$                              
Existing 23,250,000$         988,125$                            

Construction - only one year
Person Years 160,000$              6,800$                                

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) 54,497,635$         2,316,149$                         

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% 851,404$                            83,012$                  
Existing 0.36 9,597,645$                         935,770$                

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 742,500$                            72,394$                  
Existing 0.36 8,370,000$                         816,075$                

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 57,600$                              5,616$                    

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 19,619,149$                       1,912,867$             

Municipality
26.243045 Utica 24-25
30.802843 Utica 2025
13.188751 Oneida 2025

Total Rate: 70.234639
Real Property Taxes Paid: 644,754$              

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS

Real Property Taxes Abatement 635,387$                            
Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%) 34,125$                              
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%) 13,125$                              

Total: 682,637$                            

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.
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Transcript Document No. [   ]

Inducement Resolution
126 Business Park Holdings LLC Facility

RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD APPOINTING 126 BUSINESS PARK HOLDINGS 
LLC, THE PRINCIPALS OF 126 BUSINESS PARK 
HOLDINGS LLC AND/OR AN ENTITY FORMED OR TO BE 
FORMED ON BEHALF OF ANY OF THE FOREGOING AS 
AGENT OF THE AGENCY IN CONNECTION WITH A 
LEASE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION, AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, 126 Business Park Holdings LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of 126 Business Park Holdings LLC and/or an entity formed or to be formed 
on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has requested the 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) assist with a project 
consisting of acquisition and renovation of three (3) interconnected buildings totaling 
approximately 40,000 square feet (the “Improvements”) situated on a 4± acre parcel of 
land located at 126 Business Park Drive, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York (the 
“Land”); and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of retaining employment in Oneida County 
by providing desirable space to two tenants that provide back office operations (the 
Land, the Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and 
the acquisition, renovation and equipping of the Facility is referred to collectively as the 
“Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a 
Leaseback Agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Company will further sublease a portion of the Facility to Tidal 
Basin (the “TB Sublessee”) for its operation pursuant to a Sublease Agreement (the “TB 
Sublease Agreement”); and
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WHEREAS, the Company will further sublease a portion of the Facility to Benefit 
Plans Administrators (the “BPA Sublessee”) for its operation pursuant to a Sublease 
Agreement (the “BPA Sublease Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; 
and

WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to 
the Company in connection with the Project in the form of exemptions from sales and 
use taxes, exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, and a reduction in real property 
taxes for a period of ten years (the “Financial Assistance”), which financial assistance is 
consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and which will be more 
particularly set forth in a final authorizing resolution; and

WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in the 
Application, the value of the Financial Assistance is described as follows:

• Sales and use tax exemption not to exceed $13,125
• Mortgage recording tax exemption not to exceed $34,125
• Exemptions from real property taxes valued at approximately $635,387

WHEREAS, the Company has committed (a) to retain (or cause the TB 
Sublessee to retain) the TB Sublessee’s existing 46 FTEs at the Facility for the term of 
the Leaseback Agreement and (b) to retain (or cause the BPA Sublessee to retain) the 
BPA Sublessee’s existing 78 FTEs at the Facility and create (or cause the BPA 
Sublessee to create) an additional 11 FTEs at the Facility within three years of 
completion of the Project as a result of undertaking the Project, and the Agency will 
condition the proposed Financial Assistance on the Company achieving the same (the 
“Employment Obligation”), or else be subject to recapture or termination of Financial 
Assistance relating to the Project; and

WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the 
granting of any Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that 
all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-
leaseback transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and such notice 
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(together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as 
Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B; and

WHEREAS, the Project will result in the removal or abandonment of the BPA 
Sublessee’s facility located in the City of Utica, Oneida County, New York; and

WHEREAS, the Company has represented in its application that the Project is 
reasonably necessary to (a) discourage the Company from relocating outside of Oneida 
County and consolidating operations at one of the Company’s existing locations outside 
of the State and (b) preserve the Company’s competitive position in its industry because 
the space limitations of its existing facility impede the BPA Sublessee’s ability to (i) 
attract and retain quality employees, (ii) expand its business operations and (iii) 
strengthen and grow its presence in Oneida County; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the application of the 
Company and to representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback 
transaction is either an inducement to the Company and/or the BPA Sublessee to 
maintain and expand the Facility in the County or is necessary to maintain the 
competitive position of the Company and/or the BPA Sublessee in its industry; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation 
of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency 
constitutes a “State Agency”; and

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to 
the Agency an Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the 
“Questionnaire”) with respect to the Facility, a copy of which is on file at the office of the 
Agency; and

WHEREAS, prior to the granting of any Financial Assistance and following the 
determination of the lead agency, the Agency has completed its environmental review 
and made determinations for purposes of SEQRA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that:

Section 1. (a) The Project constitutes a “project” within the meaning of the Act.
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(b) The Project and the Agency’s Financial Assistance therefor, will 
promote job opportunities, health, general prosperity and the 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County and the people of 
the State of New York and improve their standard of living, and 
thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the same is, 
therefore, approved.

(c) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 
a lease-leaseback transaction for the purpose of providing financial 
assistance for the Project, as reflected in the Company’s 
application to the Agency as may be amended from time to time 
prior to the closing of the lease-leaseback transaction.

(d) The Project is reasonably necessary to (a) discourage the 
Company and/or the BPA Sublessee from moving out of State and 
(b) preserve the Company’s and/or the BPA Sublessee’s 
competitive position in its industry.

Section 2. The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-
leaseback transaction, and the completion of the Facility (the 
"Agreement") is hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver 
the Agreement, with such changes in terms and form as the 
Chairman shall approve.  The execution thereof by the Chairman 
shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 3. The Agency shall assist the Company in the Project and will 
provide the Financial Assistance with respect thereto subject to 
(i) obtaining all necessary governmental approvals, (ii) approval of 
the members of the Company, (iii) approval of the members of the 
Agency, (iv) satisfactory completion of the environmental review of 
the Facility by the Agency in compliance with the State 
Environmental Quality Review Act, (v) the Agency providing written 
notice to the chief elected officials of the tax jurisdictions at the 
Company’s existing facility that the Project will entail the 
abandonment of the Company’s existing facility; (vi) agreement by 
the Agency and the Company upon mutually acceptable terms and 
conditions for the Leaseback Agreement and other documentation 
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usual and customary to transactions of this nature, (vii) the 
condition that there are no changes in New York State Law which 
prohibit or limit the Agency from fulfilling its obligation and 
commitment as herein set forth to enter into the lease-leaseback 
transaction and (viii) payment by the Company of the Agency's 
transaction fee and the fees and disbursements of transaction 
counsel, more particularly described in the Inducement Agreement.

Section 4. The Company is herewith and hereby appointed the agent of the 
Agency to renovate, equip and complete the Facility. The Company 
is hereby empowered to delegate its status as agent of the Agency 
to the agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, 
suppliers, vendors and such other parties as the Company may 
choose in order to renovate, equip and complete the Facility.  The 
terms and conditions for the appointment of the Company as agent 
of the Agency for the purposes described in this resolution are set 
forth in the form of the attached letter addressed to the Company, 
marked as Exhibit C to this resolution.  The form of such letter is 
incorporated herein by reference and is approved and adopted by 
the Agency, and the Chairman or Executive Director of the Agency 
or any other duly authorized official of the Agency are authorized to 
execute and deliver such letter to the Company upon satisfaction of 
the conditions described in Section 3 hereof. The Agency hereby 
appoints the Company, the agents, subagents, contractors, 
subcontractors, materialmen, vendors and suppliers of the 
Company as agents of the Agency solely for purposes of making 
sales or leases of goods, services, and supplies to the Facility, and 
any such transaction between any agent, subagent, contractor, 
subcontractor, materialmen, vendor or supplier, and the Company, 
as agent of the Agency shall be deemed to be on behalf of the 
Agency and for the benefit of the Facility. The Company shall 
indemnify the Agency with respect to any transaction of any kind 
between and among the Company, the Company, the agents, 
subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, vendors 
and/or suppliers and the Company, as agent of the Agency.

Section 5. The Agency is hereby directed to schedule the Hearing, so that the 
Agency may receive comments from all interested parties on the 
financial assistance contemplated by the Agency and the Financial 
Assistance requested by the Company.



6
21536183.v1-4/25/25

Section 6. The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel in connection with the lease-leaseback 
transaction.

Section 7. Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and Sublessee 
and others to prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents 
necessary to effect the lease-leaseback transaction.

Section 8. The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 
(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and 
Sublessee, (ii) to distribute copies of this resolution by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the Oneida County Executive, the 
City of Utica Mayor, the Utica City School District Superintendent 
and the Utica City School District Clerk of the Board of Education; 
(iv) to send notice of the Agency’s proposed financial assistance to 
the Oneida County Executive, City of Utica Mayor, the Utica City 
School District Superintendent and the Utica City School District 
Clerk of the Board of Education; and (iv) to do such further things or 
perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement 
the provisions of this resolution.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution 
and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in 
public session on May 2, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which 
the following members were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

Others Present: 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows:

Voting Aye Voting Nay

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.

The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to 
and approved at such meeting.
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of 
the date, time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all 
respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the 
meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 
___________________________ 2025.

_____________________________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the 
New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the _____ day of May 2025 at _______ a.m., local 
time, at __________________________________, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York 
in connection with the following matters:

126 Business Park Holdings LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of 126 
Business Park Holdings LLC and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the 
foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has requested the Agency assist with a project 
consisting of acquisition and renovation of three (3) interconnected buildings totaling 
approximately 40,000 square feet (the “Improvements”) situated on a 4± acre parcel of land 
located at 126 Business Park Drive, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); 
and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to 
be used for the purpose of retaining employment in Oneida County by providing desirable 
space to two tenants that provide back office operations (the Land, the Improvements and 
the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the acquisition, renovation and 
equipping of the Facility is referred to collectively as the “Project”). The Project will be initially 
owned and/or operated by the Company.

The Company will lease the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a lease agreement, 
and the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a leaseback 
agreement. The Company will further sublease a portion of the Facility to Tidal Basin (the 
“TB Sublessee”) for its operation pursuant to a Sublease Agreement (the “TB Sublease 
Agreement”). The Company will further sublease a portion of the Facility to Benefit Plans 
Administrators (the “BPA Sublessee”) for its operation pursuant to a Sublease Agreement 
(the “BPA Sublease Agreement”). At the end of the lease term, the Agency will terminate its 
leasehold interest in the Facility. The Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance 
in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of ten years, exemptions from 
mortgage recording taxes and exemptions from sales tax on materials and equipment 
acquired and installed in connection with the Project, which financial assistance is consistent 
with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly described in a Final 
Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions 
described herein.

A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear and 
accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of the Facility. 
Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or electronically prior to the 
hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed and posted on the Agency’s 
website. A copy of the Application for Financial Assistance filed by the Company with the 
Agency, including an analysis of the costs and benefits of the proposed Project, is available 
for public inspection at the offices of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and 
on the Agency’s website.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Dated:  May __, 2025 By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT B

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
2025 Real Estate Lease

126 Business Park Holdings LLC Facility

1. Tim Fitzgerald, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at ____ a.m.

2. Mr. Fitzgerald being the Assistant Secretary of the Agency recorded the 
minutes of the hearing.

3. Mr. Fitzgerald then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows:

126 Business Park Holdings LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of 126 Business Park Holdings LLC and/or an entity formed 
or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the 
“Company”) has requested the Agency assist with a project consisting 
of acquisition and renovation of three (3) interconnected buildings 
totaling approximately 40,000 square feet (the “Improvements”) 
situated on a 4± acre parcel of land located at 126 Business Park 
Drive, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); and 
acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of retaining employment in 
Oneida County by providing desirable space to two tenants that 
provide back office operations (the Land, the Improvements and the 
Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the acquisition, 
renovation and equipping of the Facility is referred to collectively as the 
“Project”). The Project will be initially owned and/or operated by the 
Company.

The Company will lease the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a lease 
agreement, and the Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company 
pursuant to a leaseback agreement. The Company will further 
sublease a portion of the Facility to Tidal Basin (the “TB Sublessee”) 
for its operation pursuant to a Sublease Agreement (the “TB Sublease 
Agreement”). The Company will further sublease a portion of the 
Facility to Benefit Plans Administrators (the “BPA Sublessee”) for its 
operation pursuant to a Sublease Agreement (the “BPA Sublease 
Agreement”). At the end of the lease term, the Agency will terminate its 
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leasehold interest in the Facility. The Agency is contemplating 
providing financial assistance in the form of reduction of real property 
taxes for a period of ten years, exemptions from mortgage recording 
taxes and exemptions from sales tax on materials and equipment 
acquired and installed in connection with the Project, which financial 
assistance is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy, to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing 
Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the 
transactions described herein.

4. Mr. Fitzgerald then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views.

5. Mr. Fitzgerald then asked if there were any further comments, and, there 
being none, the hearing was closed at _____ a.m.

___________________________________
Tim Fitzgerald, Assistant Secretary
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on May 
__, 2025 at _____ a.m. local time, at ________________________, Utica, New 
York 13501, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend 
and public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, 
(ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an 
opportunity to be heard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025.

_________________________________
Secretary
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EXHIBIT C

[To be printed on IDA letterhead and delivered to the Company when appropriate]

_________________, 2025

126 Business Park Holdings LLC
449 South Salina Street, Suite 200
Syracuse, New York 13202

RE: Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Lease-Leaseback Transaction
(126 Business Park Holdings LLC Facility)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to a resolution duly adopted on May 2, 2025, the Agency appointed 126 Business 
Park Holdings LLC (the “Company”) its agent in connection with a transaction in which the 
Agency will assist in acquisition and renovation of three (3) interconnected buildings totaling 
approximately 40,000 square feet (the “Improvements”) situated on a 4± acre parcel of land 
located at 126 Business Park Drive, City of Utica, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”); 
and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to 
be used for the purpose of retaining employment in Oneida County by providing desirable 
space to two tenants that provide back office operations (the Land, the Improvements and 
the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the acquisition, renovation and 
equipping of the Facility is referred to collectively as the “Project”).

This appointment includes authority to purchase on behalf of the Agency all materials to be 
incorporated into and made an integral part of the Facility, and the following activities as 
they relate to any renovation, equipping and completion of any buildings, whether or not any 
materials, equipment or supplies described below are incorporated into or become an 
integral part of such buildings: (i) all purchases, leases, rentals and other uses of tools, 
machinery and equipment in connection with renovation and equipping (ii) all purchases, 
rentals, uses or consumption of supplies, materials and services of every kind and 
description used in connection with renovation and equipping and (iii) all purchases, leases, 
rentals and uses of equipment, machinery, and other tangible personal property (including 
installation costs), installed or placed in, upon or under such building, including all repairs 
and replacements of such property.
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The Agency will appoint the Company as its only direct agent for the Project. The agency 
appointment includes the power of the Company to delegate such agency appointment, in 
whole or in part, to agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers 
and vendors of the Company and to such other parties as the Company chooses so long as 
they are engaged, directly or indirectly, in the activities hereinbefore described. Please 
advise the Executive Director of the Agency if you wish to appoint a contractor or other 
subagent, and the Agency will issue an ST-60 to that party.

In exercising this agency appointment, you and each of your properly appointed agents and 
subagents must claim the sales tax exemption for all purchases by giving your vendors New 
York State Form ST-123. The supplier or vendor should identify the Facility on each bill or 
invoice as the “126 Business Park Holdings LLC Facility” and indicate thereon that the 
Company, its agents, subagents, contractors and subcontractors acted as agent for the 
Agency in making the purchase.

You and each of your agents, subagents, contractors and/or subcontractors claiming a sales 
tax exemption in connection with the Facility must complete a New York State Department 
of Taxation and Finance Form ST-60. Original copies of each completed Form ST-60 must 
be delivered to the Agency within five (5) days of the appointment of each of your agents, 
subagents, contractors or subcontractors. Any agent, subagent, contractor or subcontractors 
of the Sublessee which delivers completed Form ST-60 to the Agency will be deemed to be 
the agent, subagent, contractor or subcontractor of the Agency for purposes of constructing 
and equipping the Facility, and shall only then be authorized to use Form ST-123 as 
described above.  Failure to comply with these requirements may result in loss of sales tax 
exemptions for the Facility.

It is important to note that contractors and subcontractors who have not been appointed 
subagent cannot use the sales tax exemption for equipment rental, tools, supplies and other 
items that do not become part of the finished project. Contractors and subcontractors must 
be appointed as agent or sub-agent of the Agency to use the Agency sales tax exemption 
for these purchases. Contractors and subcontractors who have not been appointed a 
subagent and are making purchases that would otherwise be exempt outside of the 
Agency’s interest in the Facility must claim the sales tax exemption for renovation materials 
by giving their vendors a completed “Contractor Exempt Purchase Certificate” (Form ST-
120.1) checking box (a).

The aforesaid appointment of the Sublessee as agent of the Agency to construct and  equip 
the Facility shall expire at the earlier of (a) the completion of such activities and 
improvements, or (b) May 2, 2026, provided, however, such appointment may be extended 
at the discretion of the Agency, upon the written request of the Company if such activities 
and improvements are not completed by such time, and further provided that the Agency 
shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to the extension of such appointment.

The value of the sales tax to be abated relating to the renovation and equipping of the 
Facility currently authorized by the Agency is not to exceed $13,125. The Agency is required 
by law to recapture any New York State sales tax exemptions claimed by the Company that 
exceed $13,125 for purchases made relating to the Project in the aggregate.

You should be aware that the New York State General Municipal Law requires you to file an 
Annual Statement (Form ST-340) with the New York State Department of Taxation and 



- 3 -

21536183.v1-4/25/25

Finance regarding the value of sales tax exemptions you, your agents, consultants or 
subcontractors have claimed pursuant to the authority we have conferred on you with 
respect to the Project. We are providing a form of a worksheet for you to track all exempt 
purchases made in completing the Project, using Forms ST-123 or Form ST-120.1. Please 
provide the Agency with a copy of Form ST-340 along with your annual report to the Agency 
and this worksheet. The penalty for failure to file such statement, or to provide a copy to the 
Agency, is the removal of your authority to act as an agent.

If, for some reason, this transaction never closes, you will be liable for payment of the sales 
tax, if applicable and you are not otherwise exempt, on all materials purchased.

Please sign and return a copy of this letter for our files. The Agency will issue and deliver 
Form ST-60 to you upon receipt of this signed agency appointment letter. The Agency 
reserves the right to issue a revised agency appointment letter with respect to the process 
for utilizing and reporting exemptions hereunder.

Very truly yours,

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:
Name:
Title:

ACCEPTED & AGREED:

126 BUSINESS PARK HOLDINGS LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

















Bldgs 796 & 798
Estimated Assessment in 1,000s 1,381.250$        Provide

Full Payment Rate Year Muni
Oneida County 10.069977$       13,909$       25 Oneida (Provide)

City or Township** 20.751923$       28,664$       25 Rome Inner (Provide)
Village** -$                   -$             (Provide)

School District 36.0123177$     49,742$       24-25 Rome City Sch (Provide)
Total 66.83$               92,315$       

**Verify equalization rates with jurisdiction for parity with other jurisdictions
Annual rate increase factor of 2% is used in calculator

Annual rate increase factor of 2% is 
used in calculator 1.02

Full

75% w/2% 
annual 

Increase
 Est. PILOT 

Value 
Year 1 Payment 68.17$   94,161$             70,621$       23,540$         
Year 2 Payment 69.53$   96,044$             72,033$       24,011$         
Year 3 Payment 70.93$   97,965$             73,474$       24,491$         
Year 4 Payment 72.34$   99,924$             74,943$       24,981$         
Year 5 Payment 73.79$   101,923$           76,442$       25,481$         
Year 6 Payment 75.27$   103,961$           77,971$       25,990$         
Year 7 Payment 76.77$   106,041$           79,530$       26,510$         
Year 8 Payment 78.31$   108,161$           81,121$       27,040$         
Year 9 Payment 79.87$   110,325$           82,744$       27,581$         

Year 10 Payment 81.47$   112,531$           84,398$       28,133$         
Total Due: 1,031,037$        773,278$     257,759$       

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX BENEFIT VALUE CALCULATOR

Information on Real Property Proposed For PILOT

Tax Rates Per 1k of Assessment at time of application*

*Do not include Special District Tax Rates

PILOT VALUE CALCULATOR VALUES

To be used as guidance to calculate the PILOT Benefit value on Page 9 of application. Rates and 
assessments are for example only.



25-Apr-25
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: GLDC

Description of Project: 796-798 PILOT Extension

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of BAE, CUBRC, 
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant:

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project:

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds
Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement

X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY



C

Project Costs
Land Acquisition
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION
Existing Building(S) RENOVATION -$                     
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION
Installation Costs
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture)
Furniture & Fixtures -$                     
Architectural & Engineering
Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel)
Financial (all costs related to project financing)
Permits
Other
Agency Fee
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT -$                     

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount: -$                     
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 84 80,000$                              
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years)
Retained Jobs 84 80,000$                              

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant 80,000$                
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$                
Average of Construction Jobs

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 0

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing 20,160,000$         856,800$                            

Indirect Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing 15,750,000$         669,375$                            

Construction - only one year
Person Years -$                     -$                                    

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) 35,910,000$         1,526,175$                         

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 7,257,600$                         707,616$                

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 5,670,000$                         552,825$                

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 12,927,600$                       1,260,441$             

Municipality
36.0123177 Rome 24-25
20.751923 Rome 2025
10.633993 Oneida 2025

Total Rate: 67.3982337
Real Property Taxes Paid: 384,979$              

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS

Real Property Taxes Abatement 257,759$                            
Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%)
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%)

Total: 257,759$                            

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.



21553277.v1-4/25/25

Inducement Resolution
GLDC Building 796/798

PILOT Extension

RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY 
OFFICIAL ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH AN AMENDED 
SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION, AUTHORIZING THE 
AGENCY TO EXECUTE AN INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT, 
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC 
HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity formed or to be 
formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) previously 
requested the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) provide 
financial assistance in connection with renovations to a 46,792± gross square foot 
building known as Building 796/798 (which includes the construction of a 24,563± gross 
square foot addition thereto) (collectively, the “Improvements”) situated on a 4.526± 
acre parcel of land located at 725 Daedalian Drive, Griffiss Business and Technology 
Park, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”) and the acquisition and 
installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”) all to be used for the 
coordination of redevelopment efforts for the realigned Griffiss Air Force Base (the 
Land, the Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and 
the construction, renovation and equipping of the Facility is the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency owns the Facility and leases it to the Company pursuant 
to a Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “Lease Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Company further subleases (a) to BAE Systems Technology 
Solutions and Services, Inc. (“BAE Technology”) the first floor of Building 798 comprised 
of 12,114± square feet (the “BAE Technology Facility”) pursuant to a Sublease 
Agreement dated June 15, 2010, as amended (collectively, the “BAE Technology 
Sublease”); and (b) to BAE Systems Information & Electronics Systems Integration, Inc. 
(“BAE Information”) the second floor of Building 798 comprised of 12,518± square feet 
(the “BAE Information Facility” and together with the BAE Technology Facility, “Building 
798”) pursuant to a Sublease Agreement dated February 11, 2009 as amended 
(collectively, the BAE Information Sublease”); and

WHEREAS, the Company further subleases a 4,623± square foot portion of the 
Facility to CUBRC, Inc. for its operation; and
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WHEREAS, the remaining 17,537± square feet in the Facility is either vacant or 
occupied by the Company; and

WHEREAS, each of the BAE Technology Sublease and the BAE Information 
Sublease includes three three-year options for renewal, and the Company continues to 
actively market the vacant portions of the Facility to end users; and 

WHEREAS, the Company and the Agency entered into a Payment-In-Lieu-of-Tax 
Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “PILOT Agreement”) providing for payments in 
lieu of taxes relating to the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the PILOT Agreement provides that any portion of the Facility that is 
occupied by a for-profit tenant currently pays 75% of Exempt Taxes and any portion of 
the Facility that is occupied by a not-for-profit tenant or occupied by the Company is 
fully exempt; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted a letter to the Agency describing certain 
challenges with leasing the Facility and is requesting the Agency extend the term of the 
PILOT Agreement for an additional ten years in continued support of the Project and as 
an inducement for BAE Information and BAE Technology to exercise its options to 
renew their respective subleases, to continue to maintain their presences and to retain 
employment in the Griffiss Business and Technology Park (collectively, the “Project”); 
and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; 
and

WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to 
the Company in the form of extending the abatement of real property taxes from fifteen 
years to twenty-five years, during which time the Company will make PILOT Payments 
on any portion of the Facility that is occupied by a for-profit tenant equal to 75% of 
Exempt Taxes and any portion of the Facility that is occupied by a not-for-profit tenant 
or occupied by the Company continues to be fully exempt, which is a deviation from the 
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly described in a Final 
Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the 
transactions described herein; and

WHEREAS, the value of the proposed financial assistance is estimated at 
$257,759 (approximately); and
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WHEREAS, The Agency is contemplating deviating from its Policy for the 
following reasons:

1. The nature of the proposed project. The Agency recognizes the 
importance of and wishes to encourage the BAE Sublessees maintaining a 
presence in Oneida County and specifically in the Griffiss Business and 
Technology Park. Furthermore, the BAE Sublessees engage in an industry 
cluster that the Agency wishes to encourage in the region. The Agency also 
wishes to continue to support the success of the Griffiss Business and 
Technology Park.

2. The extent to which financial assistance for the properties will create 
or retain permanent, private sector jobs.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation 
of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency 
constitutes a “State Agency”; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined for purposes of SEQRA that the 
environmental conditions at the Facility are not impacted by the current action, and 
therefore the environmental reviews conducted by the Agency at the time of the Project 
are sufficient and are hereby ratified; and

WHEREAS, prior to the closing of an amended sale-leaseback transaction, and 
the granting of any financial assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so 
that all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the financial assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a sale-
leaseback transaction, and the granting of any tax benefits, and such notice (together 
with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A; 
and

WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that, 
subject to the satisfaction of the aforesaid conditions:
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Section 1. (a) The Project and the Agency’s continued financial assistance 
therefor, will promote job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County and the 
people of the State of New York and improve their standard of 
living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the 
same is, therefore, approved.

(b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 
an amended sale-leaseback transaction, for the purpose of 
providing additional financial assistance to the Project, as reflected 
in the Company's letter to the Agency and as amended from time to 
time prior to the closing of the amended sale-leaseback transaction, 
all subject to the satisfaction of the conditions of financial 
assistance described herein.

(c) In consideration of the ongoing development efforts for the Griffiss 
Business and Technology Park, the Agency agrees to waive the 
requirement for the Company to pay annual rent under the Lease 
Agreement and the Agency’s closing fees for the transaction.

Section 2. The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction, and the continued 
development of the Facility (the "Agreement") are hereby approved.  
The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the 
Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with such changes 
in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve.  The execution 
thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of 
such approval.

Section 3. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4.02 of the Agreement 
and the conditions described above, the Agency shall continue to 
assist the Company in the Project and will continue to provide 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto.

Section 4. The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel in connection with the amended sale-
leaseback transaction.
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Section 5. Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the amended sale-leaseback transaction.

Section 6. The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 
(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to 
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution.

Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and 
of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public 
session on May 2, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the 
following members were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

Others Present: 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows:

Voting Aye Voting Nay

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was 
duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 
___________________________ 2025.

_____________________________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on May __, 2025 at 9:00 a.m., local 
time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York in connection 
with the following matters:

Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity formed or to 
be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) previously 
requested the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) provide 
financial assistance in connection with renovations to a 46,792± gross square foot 
building known as Building 796/798 (which includes the construction of a 24,563± 
gross square foot addition thereto) (collectively, the “Improvements”) situated on a 
4.526± acre parcel of land located at 725 Daedalian Drive, Griffiss Business and 
Technology Park, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”) and the 
acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”) all 
to be used for the coordination of redevelopment efforts for the realigned Griffiss Air 
Force Base (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively 
as the “Facility” and the construction, renovation and equipping of the Facility is the 
“Project”).

The Agency owns the Facility and leases it to the Company pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “Lease Agreement”). The Company 
further subleases portions of the Facility to BAE Systems Technology Solutions and 
Services, Inc. (“BAE Technology”), BAE Systems Information & Electronics Systems 
Integration, Inc. (“BAE Information”), and other subtenants, all in furtherance of 
developing the Griffiss Business and Technology Park. The Company and the 
Agency entered into a Payment-In-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 
(the “PILOT Agreement”) providing for payments in lieu of taxes relating to the 
Facility. The Company is now requesting the Agency extend the term of the PILOT 
Agreement in continued support of the Project and all as an inducement for BAE 
Information and BAE Technology to continue to maintain their presences and to 
retain employment in the Griffiss Business and Technology Park.

The Agency contemplates that it will provide additional financial assistance to 
the Company relating to the Facility in the form of extending the abatement of real 
property taxes from fifteen years to twenty-five years, during which time the 
Company will make PILOT Payments on any portion of the Facility that is occupied 
by a for-profit tenant equal to 75% of Exempt Taxes and any portion of the Facility 
that is occupied by a not-for-profit tenant or occupied by the Company continues to 
be fully exempt, which financial assistance represents a deviation from the Agency’ s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly described in a final 
authorizing resolution.
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A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear 
and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to 
either the proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of 
the Facility. Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or 
electronically prior to the hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed 
and posted on the Agency’s website. A copy of the Application for Financial 
Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of the costs 
and benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public inspection at the offices 
of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s website.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Dated: May __, 2025 By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT B

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
GRIFFISS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(Building 796/798 Facility)

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order.

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing.

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows:

Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity 
formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, 
the “Company”) previously requested the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) provide financial assistance in 
connection with renovations to a 46,792± gross square foot building 
known as Building 796/798 (which includes the construction of a 
24,563± gross square foot addition thereto) (collectively, the 
“Improvements”) situated on a 4.526± acre parcel of land located at 
725 Daedalian Drive, Griffiss Business and Technology Park, City of 
Rome, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”) and the acquisition and 
installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”) all to 
be used for the coordination of redevelopment efforts for the realigned 
Griffiss Air Force Base (the Land, the Improvements and the 
Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction, 
renovation and equipping of the Facility is the “Project”).

The Agency owns the Facility and leases it to the Company pursuant 
to a Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “Lease 
Agreement”). The Company further subleases portions of the Facility to 
BAE Systems Technology Solutions and Services, Inc. (“BAE 
Technology”), BAE Systems Information & Electronics Systems 
Integration, Inc. (“BAE Information”), and other subtenants, all in 
furtherance of developing the Griffiss Business and Technology Park. 
The Company and the Agency entered into a Payment-In-Lieu-of-Tax 
Agreement dated as of April 1, 2010 (the “PILOT Agreement”) 
providing for payments in lieu of taxes relating to the Facility. The 
Company is now requesting the Agency extend the term of the PILOT 
Agreement in continued support of the Project and all as an 
inducement for BAE Information and BAE Technology to continue to 
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maintain their presences and to retain employment in the Griffiss 
Business and Technology Park.

The Agency contemplates that it will provide additional financial 
assistance to the Company relating to the Facility in the form of 
extending the abatement of real property taxes from fifteen years to 
twenty-five years, during which time the Company will make PILOT 
Payments on any portion of the Facility that is occupied by a for-profit 
tenant equal to 75% of Exempt Taxes and any portion of the Facility 
that is occupied by a not-for-profit tenant or occupied by the Company 
continues to be fully exempt, which financial assistance represents a 
deviation from the Agency’ s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be 
more particularly described in a final authorizing resolution.

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views.

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at ____ a.m.

___________________________________
Mark Kaucher
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Issuer”) on May __, 
2025 at 9:00 a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York with the original 
thereof on file in the office of the Issuer, and that the same is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes in connection with such matter.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend 
and public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, 
(ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an 
opportunity to be heard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025.

_________________________________
Secretary















Former B 240- Vacant Land
Estimated Assessment in 1,000s 800.000$               Provide

Full Payment 
if Taxable Rate Year Muni

Oneida County 10.069977$           8,056$         25 Oneida (Provide)
City or Township** 20.751923$           16,602$       25 Rome Inner (Provide)

Village** -$                       -$             (Provide)
School District 36.0123177$         28,810$       24-25 Rome City Sch (Provide)

Total 66.83$                   53,467$       
**Verify equalization rates with jurisdiction for parity with other jurisdictions

Annual rate increase factor of 2% is used in calculator

Annual rate increase factor of 2% is 
used in calculator 1.02

Property Exempt
Zero 

Payments
 Est. PILOT 

Value 
Year 1 Payment 68.17$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 2 Payment 69.53$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 3 Payment 70.93$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 4 Payment 72.34$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 5 Payment 73.79$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 6 Payment 75.27$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 7 Payment 76.77$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 8 Payment 78.31$  -$                       -$             -$              
Year 9 Payment 79.87$  -$                       -$             -$              

Year 10 Payment 81.47$  -$                       -$             -$              
Total Due: -$                       -$             -$              

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX BENEFIT VALUE CALCULATOR

Information on Real Property Proposed For PILOT

Tax Rates Per 1k of Assessment at time of application*

*Do not include Special District Tax Rates

PILOT VALUE CALCULATOR VALUES

To be used as guidance to calculate the PILOT Benefit value on Page 9 of application. Rates and 
assessments are for example only.



April 25. 2025
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: GLDC

Description of Project: Former B 240 - Vacant Land

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of Vacant
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant:

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project:

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds
Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement

X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY



C

Project Costs
Land Acquisition
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION
Existing Building(S) RENOVATION -$                     
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION
Installation Costs
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture)
Furniture & Fixtures -$                     
Architectural & Engineering
Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel)
Financial (all costs related to project financing)
Permits
Other
Agency Fee
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT -$                     

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount: -$                     
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 0 -$                                    
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years)
Retained Jobs 0 -$                                    

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant -$                     
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$                
Average of Construction Jobs

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 0

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing -$                     -$                                    

Indirect Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing -$                     -$                                    

Construction - only one year
Person Years -$                     -$                                    

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) -$                     -$                                    

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES -$                                    -$                        

Municipality
36.0123177 Rome 24-25
20.751923 Rome 2025
10.633993 Oneida 2025

Total Rate: 67.3982337
Real Property Taxes Paid: -$                     

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS

Real Property Taxes Abatement -$                                    
Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%)
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%)

Total: -$                                    

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.
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Authorizing Resolution
GLDC Building 240 Facility

PILOT Extension

RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY 
OFFICIAL ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH AN AMENDED 
LEASE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION, AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO 
CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO 
THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity formed or to be 
formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) previously 
requested the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) provide 
financial assistance in connection with (1) the acquisition of parcels of land situated at 
the northwest corner of the Hill Road/Floyd Avenue intersection in the Griffiss Business 
and Technology Park in the City of Rome, County of Oneida, New York measuring 
25.452± acres in the aggregate (the “Land”); (2) acquisition of the existing buildings 
and/or improvements situated on the Land, including a ±117,323 square foot main 
building known as Building 240, a ±13,199 square foot support building known as 
Building 247 and a ±4,000 square foot support building known as Building 248 
(collectively, the “Existing Improvements”); (3) the remediation, demolition and 
renovation of the Existing Improvements; (4) the construction of additions to the Existing 
Improvements and/or new buildings on the Land (the “New Improvements”) (the 
Existing Improvements and the New Improvements, collectively, the “Improvements”); 
and (5) the acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements; all to be used 
for the continued coordination of redevelopment efforts for the realigned Griffiss Air 
Force Base, (collectively, the “Original Facility” and the acquisition, remediation, 
demolition, renovation and equipping of the Original Facility is the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Company was able to ready the Original Facility for future 
development by (a) demolishing former Air Force Building 240 and related former Air 
Force facilities located thereon and (b) otherwise making the Original Facility a 
developable site; and

WHEREAS, in August of 2017, the Company sold a 2.200± acre portion of the 
Original Facility to Stewart’s Shops Corp. which then built, opened and is currently 
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operating a Stewart’s convenience store thereon, which property has been returned to 
the taxable roll; and

WHEREAS, the Company sold several parcels comprising the Original Facility 
totaling 12.627± acres in the aggregate to B240 LLC, which then built, opened and is 
currently operating four (4) multi-story, mixed-use buildings known as the Air City Lofts 
project, which properties are generating PILOT Payments; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the above transfers, the remaining interest in the 
Original Facility now consists of (a) a 2.641± acre parcel situate on Floyd Avenue 
known as New Lot 3A, (b) a 3.726± acre parcel situate on NYS Route 825 known as 
New Lot 4A and (c) a 4.168± acre strip of land known as Air City Boulevard and Hangar 
Road West (such remaining property referred to as the “Facility”); and

WHEREAS, the Company owns the Facility and leases it to the Agency pursuant 
to a Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2014, as amended (the “Lease Agreement”); 
and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a 
Leaseback Agreement dated as of July 1, 2014, as amended (the “Leaseback 
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Facility is the subject of a Payment-In-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement 
between the Company and the Agency dated as of July 1, 2014 (the “PILOT 
Agreement”) that provides a full exemption from real property taxes during the time it is 
being remarketed and developed by the Company; and

WHEREAS, the terms of the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement and 
the PILOT Agreement (collectively, the “Agency Documents”) are scheduled to expire 
on June 30, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted a letter to the Agency outlining its 
success in remarketing and developing the Original Facility and requesting an extension 
of the  Agency Documents to allow the Company to continue to market and develop the 
Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; 
and
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WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to 
the Company in the form of extending the full exemption from real property taxes for a 
period of ten years, which is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy (the “Policy”); and

WHEREAS, the value of the proposed financial assistance is estimated to be $0 
(the Land has been tax exempt); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating deviating from Policy for the following 
reasons:

1. The nature of the Project: The purpose of the Project was to assist the 
Company in its redevelopment of the former Griffiss Air Force Base. 
Extending the Agency’s lease of the Facility to the Company, and the 
Agency’s related financial assistance to the Company, will promote, 
encourage and assist the Company to complete the Project and will thereby 
advance the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic welfare of 
Oneida County residents.

2. The nature of the property before the project begins: The Company has 
demonstrated its success in remarketing the Facility as a “shovel ready” 
parcel.

3. The economic condition of the area:  The Facility is located in an area that 
has been designated an economic development zone (Empire Zone) 
pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law, and is therefore 
located in a "highly distressed area" (as defined in Section 854(18) of the 
New York General Municipal Law).  Redevelopment of this particular area 
(the former Griffiss AFB) is a priority for state and local government officials.

4. The extent to which financial assistance for the Properties will create or 
retain permanent, private sector jobs:  The Company has been successful 
in facilitating redevelopment of the former Griffiss AFB, and the proposed 
financial assistance will support the Company in achieving further success.

5. Impact of the proposed tax exemptions on affected tax jurisdictions:  
The Facility was tax exempt during the 50+ years it was owned by the Air 
Force.  The continuation of the tax-exempt status will not reduce the amount 
of tax revenue presently realized by the affected tax jurisdictions.

6. Impact on existing and proposed businesses and economic 
development projects in the vicinity:  Continuing to develop the Facility will 
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attract new businesses and investment to the Griffiss Business Park and will 
also help existing businesses to grow and prosper.

7. The extent to which additional sources of revenue for municipalities and 
school districts will be created:  The Company’s development of the 
Existing Facility to date has generated tax revenues and/or PILOT payments 
for the benefit of the County of Oneida, the City of Rome and the Rome City 
School District. Development of the Facility will generate additional tax 
revenues and/or PILOT payments.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation 
of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency 
constitutes a “State Agency”; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined for purposes of SEQRA that the 
environmental conditions at the Facility are not impacted by the current action, and 
therefore the environmental reviews conducted by the Agency at the time of the Project 
are sufficient and are hereby ratified; and

WHEREAS, prior to the closing of an amended lease-leaseback transaction, and 
the granting of any financial assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so 
that all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the financial assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of an amended 
lease-leaseback transaction, and the granting of any financial assistance, and such 
notice (together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed 
hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that, 
subject to the satisfaction of the aforesaid conditions:

Section 1. (a) The Project, and the Agency’s continued financial assistance 
therefor, will promote job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County and the 
people of the State of New York and improve their standard of 
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living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the 
same is, therefore, approved.

(b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 
an amended lease-leaseback transaction, for the purpose of 
providing additional financial assistance to the Project, as reflected 
in the Company's letter to the Agency and as amended from time to 
time prior to the closing of the amended lease-leaseback 
transaction, all subject to the satisfaction of the conditions of 
financial assistance described herein.

(c) In consideration of the ongoing development efforts for the Griffiss 
Business and Technology Park, the Agency agrees to waive the 
requirement for the Company to pay annual rent under the 
Leaseback Agreement and waives the Agency’s closing fees for the 
transactions.

Section 2. The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the 
amended lease-leaseback transaction, and the continued 
development of the Facility (the "Agreement") are hereby approved.  
The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the 
Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with such changes 
in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve.  The execution 
thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of 
such approval.

Section 3. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4.02 of the Agreement 
and the conditions described above, the Agency shall continue to 
assist the Company in the Project and will continue to provide 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto.

Section 4. The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel in connection with the amended lease-
leaseback transaction.

Section 5. Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the lease-leaseback transaction.
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Section 6. The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 
(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to 
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution.

Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and 
of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public 
session on May 2, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the 
following members were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

Others Present: 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows:

Voting Aye Voting Nay

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
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time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was 
duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 
___________________________ 2025.

_____________________________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on May __, 2025 at 9:00 a.m., local 
time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York in connection 
with the following matters:

Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity formed or to 
be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) previously 
requested the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) provide 
financial assistance in connection with (1) the acquisition of parcels of land situated 
at the northwest corner of the Hill Road/Floyd Avenue intersection in the Griffiss 
Business and Technology Park in the City of Rome, County of Oneida, New York 
measuring 25.452± acres in the aggregate (the “Land”); (2) acquisition of the 
existing buildings and/or improvements situated on the Land, including a ±117,323 
square foot main building known as Building 240, a ±13,199 square foot support 
building known as Building 247 and a ±4,000 square foot support building known as 
Building 248 (collectively, the “Existing Improvements”); (3) the remediation, 
demolition and renovation of the Existing Improvements; (4) the construction of 
additions to the Existing Improvements and/or new buildings on the Land (the “New 
Improvements”) (the Existing Improvements and the New Improvements, 
collectively, the “Improvements”); and (5) the acquisition and installation of 
equipment in the Improvements; all to be used for the continued coordination of 
redevelopment efforts for the realigned Griffiss Air Force Base, (collectively, the 
“Original Facility” and the acquisition, remediation, demolition, renovation and 
equipping of the Original Facility is the “Project”). Following several transfers of 
portions of the Original Facility to end users, the remaining interest in the Original 
Facility now consists of (a) a 2.641± acre parcel situate on Floyd Avenue known as 
New Lot 3A, (b) a 3.726± acre parcel situate on NYS Route 825 known as New Lot 
4A and (c) a 4.168± acre strip of land known as Air City Boulevard and Hangar Road 
West (such remaining property referred to as the “Facility”).

The Company leases the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a Lease 
Agreement dated as of July 1, 2014 (the “Lease Agreement”). The Agency leases 
the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement dated as of 
July 1, 2014 (the “Leaseback Agreement”). The Company and the Agency entered 
into a Payment-In-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement dated as of July 1, 2014 (the “PILOT 
Agreement”) providing for a full exemption from real property taxes relating to the 
Facility. The Company is now requesting the Agency extend the term of the PILOT 
Agreement for an additional ten years in continued support of the Project.

The Agency contemplates that it will provide additional financial assistance to 
the Company relating to the Facility in the form of extending the full exemption of 
real property taxes from ten years to twenty years, which financial assistance 
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represents a deviation from the Agency’ s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more 
particularly described in a final authorizing resolution.

A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear 
and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to 
either the proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of 
the Facility. Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or 
electronically prior to the hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed 
and posted on the Agency’s website. A copy of the Application for Financial 
Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of the costs 
and benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public inspection at the offices 
of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s website.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Dated: May __, 2025 By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT B

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
GRIFFISS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(Building 240 Facility)

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order.

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing.

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows:

Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity 
formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, 
the “Company”) previously requested the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) provide financial assistance in 
connection with (1) the acquisition of parcels of land situated at the 
northwest corner of the Hill Road/Floyd Avenue intersection in the 
Griffiss Business and Technology Park in the City of Rome, County of 
Oneida, New York measuring 25.452± acres in the aggregate (the 
“Land”); (2) acquisition of the existing buildings and/or improvements 
situated on the Land, including a ±117,323 square foot main building 
known as Building 240, a ±13,199 square foot support building known 
as Building 247 and a ±4,000 square foot support building known as 
Building 248 (collectively, the “Existing Improvements”); (3) the 
remediation, demolition and renovation of the Existing Improvements; 
(4) the construction of additions to the Existing Improvements and/or 
new buildings on the Land (the “New Improvements”) (the Existing 
Improvements and the New Improvements, collectively, the 
“Improvements”); and (5) the acquisition and installation of equipment 
in the Improvements; all to be used for the continued coordination of 
redevelopment efforts for the realigned Griffiss Air Force Base, 
(collectively, the “Original Facility” and the acquisition, remediation, 
demolition, renovation and equipping of the Original Facility is the 
“Project”). Following several transfers of portions of the Original Facility 
to end users, the remaining interest in the Original Facility now 
consists of (a) a 2.641± acre parcel situate on Floyd Avenue known as 
New Lot 3A, (b) a 3.726± acre parcel situate on NYS Route 825 known 
as New Lot 4A and (c) a 4.168± acre strip of land known as Air City 
Boulevard and Hangar Road West (such remaining property referred to 
as the “Facility”).
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The Company leases the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a Lease 
Agreement dated as of July 1, 2014 (the “Lease Agreement”). The 
Agency leases the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a 
Leaseback Agreement dated as of July 1, 2014 (the “Leaseback 
Agreement”). The Company and the Agency entered into a Payment-
In-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement dated as of July 1, 2014 (the “PILOT 
Agreement”) providing for a full exemption from real property taxes 
relating to the Facility. The Company is now requesting the Agency 
extend the term of the PILOT Agreement for an additional ten years in 
continued support of the Project.

The Agency contemplates that it will provide additional financial 
assistance to the Company relating to the Facility in the form of 
extending the full exemption of real property taxes from ten years to 
twenty years, which financial assistance represents a deviation from 
the Agency’ s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly 
described in a final authorizing resolution.

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views.

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at ____ a.m.

___________________________________
Mark Kaucher
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Issuer”) on May __, 
2025 at 9:00 a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York with the original 
thereof on file in the office of the Issuer, and that the same is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes in connection with such matter.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend 
and public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, 
(ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an 
opportunity to be heard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of ____________, 
2025.

_________________________________
Secretary



 TERMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE  

Board Summary – May 2, 2025  

Company: Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation  

Description of Project: Extension of PILOT on the RCBRC-Owl Wire facility at 220 S. 
Madison St., Rome.  

Project Cost: N/A  

Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation was formed for the sole purpose 
of remediating properties formerly owned by Rome Cable Corporation in the City of Rome, 
so that the properties could be remediated and redeveloped for end users. RCBRC is 
requesting that the existing PILOT on the Owl Wire/220 S. Madison St. property be extended 
to ensure that the property remains cost-effective for commercial tenants. Without 
commercial tenants, RCBRC will not have sufficient income to cover the significant financial 
obligations with respect to the facility. The facility is undergoing environmental remediation, 
and also requires extensive repairs in the wake of the 2024 tornado. As these improvements 
are being made, it is RCBRC’s intent to offer to sell the property to the current tenant or some 
future end user. In the meantime, the financial assistance through the PILOT is critical to 
RCBRC being able to operate and fulfill its mission. 

Type of Facility: Manufacturing  

Request for Financial Assistance  

PILOT Value estimate: $ 19,232 if occupied by for-profit business; or $237,456 if vacant 

The property already benefits from a PILOT agreement. This current agreement prescribes 
the Year 10 (current) PILOT payment to be 94% of total taxes due. The request will extend the 
PILOT term another five years, and convert the PILOT to fixed payments of 94% of the current 
taxes due. If the facility’s commercial tenant leaves, then the annual PILOT payment will be 
$0. 

Affected Tax Jurisdictions: County of Oneida; City of Rome; Rome City School District,  

Obligations for Financial Assistance  

Current FTEs to be retained at the Facility: 46 

FTEs to be created at the Facility: 0 









2024 Assessment
Div. 1000
PILOT Payment Rate per $1,000
2024 Full Tax 68.59$                                  
2024 PILOT
2024 Net Benefit

PILOT PILOT Full Tax Proposed PILOT
 (Current Year 10) 2025-26 31,764.25$     39,293.02$               94%

(New Year 1) 2026-27 37,674.14$     40,078.88$               94%
(New Year 2) 2027-28 37,674.14$     40,880.45$               
(New Year 3) 2028-29 37,674.14$     41,698.06$               
(New Year 4) 2029-30 37,674.14$     42,532.03$               
(New Year 5) 2030-31 37,674.14$     43,382.67$               

188,370.72$  208,572.09$             

PILOT Value 20,201.36$     

2024 Assessment
Div. 1000
PILOT Payment Rate per $1,000
2024 Full Tax 68.59$                                  
2025 Full Tax (2% Esc.)
2024 PILOT
2024 Net Benefit

PILOT PILOT Full Tax Proposed PILOT
 (Current Year 10) 2025-26 -$                    46,989.30$               

(New Year 1) 2026-27 -$                    47,929.08$               
(New Year 2) 2027-28 -$                    48,887.67$               
(New Year 3) 2028-29 -$                    49,865.42$               
(New Year 4) 2029-30 -$                    50,862.73$               
(New Year 5) 2030-31 -$                    51,879.98$               

-$                    249,424.88$             

PILOT Value 249,424.88$  

For Profit Occupied

46,067.94$                                                   

31,764.25$                                                   
14,303.69$                                                   

Vacant
IWG Facility

671,600$                                                       
671.6$                                                            

88%

6,758.32$                                                     

38,522.57$                                                   
31,764.25$                                                   

IWG Facility
561,600$                                                       

561.6$                                                            
88%



Date 4/25/2025
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: RCBRC/Owl Wire

Description of Project: Extension of PILOT

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of Owl Wire
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant:

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced Wire Manufacturing
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project: Jul-05

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds
Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement

X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
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Project Costs
Land Acquisition -$                     
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION -$                     
Existing Building(S) RENOVATION -$                     
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION -$                     
Installation Costs -$                     
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction -$                     
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture) -$                     
Furniture & Fixtures -$                     
Architectural & Engineering -$                     
Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel) -$                     
Financial (all costs related to project financing) -$                     
Permits -$                     
Other -$                     
Agency Fee -$                     
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT -$                     

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount: -$                     
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 8 50,000$                              
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years)
Retained Jobs 8 50,000$                              

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant 50,000$                
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$                
Average of Construction Jobs

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 0

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing 1,200,000$           51,000$                              

Indirect Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing 1,500,000$           63,750$                              

Construction - only one year
Person Years -$                     -$                                    

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) 2,700,000$           114,750$                            

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 432,000$                            42,120$                  

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 540,000$                            52,650$                  

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 972,000$                            94,770$                  

Municipality
37.772412 Rome 24-25
20.751923 Rome 2025
10.069977 Oneida 2025

Total Rate: 68.594312
Real Property Taxes Paid: 37,315$                

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS

Real Property Taxes Abatement 19,232$                              
Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%)
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%)

Total: 19,232$                              

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.
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Transcript Document No. [   ]

Inducement Resolution
Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation

220 South Madison Street/IWG Facility
PILOT Extension

RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY 
OFFICIAL ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH AN AMENDED 
SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION, AUTHORIZING THE 
AGENCY TO EXECUTE AN INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT, 
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC 
HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, from the 1920s until 2003, Rome Cable Corporation (“Rome Cable”) 
and its predecessors owned and operated a wire manufacturing and spinning business 
on 61.338± acres of land located on the west side of South Madison Street, City of 
Rome, County of Oneida, State of New York (the “Rome Cable Site”); and

WHEREAS, following Rome Cable’s bankruptcy and closure, it was determined 
that the Rome Cable Site constituted a “brownfield” site in need of environmental 
investigation, remediation, restoration and/or clean-up (collectively, the “Environmental 
Remediation”) so to enable its eventual re-use and/or redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2004, Rome Community Brownfield Restoration 
Corporation (“RCBRC,” and sometimes referred to as the “Company”) was formed for 
the corporate purpose “to promote the development or re-use of property, including 
Brownfield sites within the City of Rome and its environs, to and including acting as an 
entity for title holding and managing said properties for economic development 
purposes;” and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases to RCBRC the premises described 
in the 2004 Deed, being an approximately 5 acre parcel of land located at 220 South 
Madison Street in the City of Rome, County of Oneida and State of New York (the 
"Land"), pursuant to a First Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated as of 
December 1, 2015 (the “Lease Agreement”), the term of which Lease Agreement is 
scheduled to expire on June 30, 2026; and

WHEREAS, the Company subleases the Facility to International Wire (the 
“Sublessee”) for its operation, the term of which sublease expired on April 30, 2025; and
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WHEREAS, the Facility is the subject of a First Amended and Restated 
PILOT Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015 (the “PILOT Agreement”) among the 
Agency, the Company and the Sublessee; and

WHEREAS, the Company submitted a letter to the Agency describing the 
damage the Facility suffered during the tornados as well as the status of the ongoing 
Environmental Remediation, and requesting an extension of the Lease Agreement to 
allow the Company to continue to undertake the Environmental Remediation and the 
rehabiliation work needed to return the Facility to a leaseable condition, all as an 
inducement to the Sublessee to continue to lease the Facility and retain employment in 
the City of Rome (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, 
develop, encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the 
State of New York; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the PILOT Agreement, the Company is 
currently paying PILOT Payments equal to 94% of taxes; and

WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial 
assistance to the Company in the form of extending the existing PILOT Agreement for 
an additional five years with PILOT Payments to (a) be converted to fixed payments 
equal to the current PILOT Payment plus an annual escalator if the Facility is occupied 
by a for-profit tenant (value estimated at $20,201) and (b) to be fully exempt if the 
Facility is vacant and occupied by the Company (maximum value estimated at 
$249,425), which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy (the “Policy”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating deviating from Policy for the 
following reasons:

1. The nature of the Project: The purpose of the Agency’s acquisition of the 
property was to assist the Company in its remediation and redevelopment of 
the former Rome Cable site. Extending the Lease Agreement, and the 
Agency’s related financial assistance to the Company, will promote, 
encourage and assist the Company to complete the Environmental 
Remediation, to rehabilitate the Facility after the tornado damage, and to 
serve as an inducement for the Sublesse to continue its tenancy, and will 
thereby advance the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of Oneida County residents.
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2. The nature of the property before the project begins: The Company 
continues to undertake Environmental Remediation of the “brownfield” site.

3. The economic condition of the area:  The Facility is located in an area that 
has been designated an economic development zone (Empire Zone) 
pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law, and is therefore 
located in a "highly distressed area" (as defined in Section 854(18) of the 
New York General Municipal Law).

4. The extent to which financial assistance will create or retain permanent, 
private sector jobs:  The Company has been successful in facilitating 
redevelopment of the balance of the Rome Cable Site, and the proposed 
financial assistance will support the Company in achieving further success.

5. Impact of the proposed tax exemptions on affected tax jurisdictions:  
Keeping the PILOT Payments at the current level if occupied by a for-profit 
tenant will not reduce the amount of tax revenue presently realized by the 
affected tax jurisdictions.

6. Impact on existing and proposed businesses and economic 
development projects in the vicinity:  Continuing the Environmental 
Remediation and repairing the tornado damage is necessary to attract new 
businesses and investment to the City of Rome and will also help existing 
businesses to grow and prosper.

7. The extent to which additional sources of revenue for municipalities and 
school districts will be created:  To date the Company’s redevelopment of 
the Facility has generated tax revenues and/or PILOT payments for the 
benefit of the County of Oneida, the City of Rome and the Rome City School 
District. Continuing the Environmental Remediation and the rehabiliation of 
the Facility will generate additional tax revenues and/or PILOT payments by 
ensuring the Facility is leaseable to end users.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the 
Agency constitutes a “State Agency”; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined for purposes of SEQRA that the 
environmental conditions at the Facility are not impacted by the current action, and 
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therefore the environmental reviews conducted by the Agency at the time of the Project 
are sufficient and are hereby ratified; and

WHEREAS, prior to the closing of an amended sale-leaseback 
transaction, and the granting of any financial assistance, a public hearing (the 
“Hearing”) will be held so that all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
financial assistance contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the 
Facility, can be heard; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of an 
amended sale-leaseback transaction, and the granting of any financial assistance, and 
such notice (together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed 
hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that, 
subject to the satisfaction of the aforesaid conditions:

Section 1. (a) The Project, and the Agency’s continued financial assistance 
therefor, will promote job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County and the 
people of the State of New York and improve their standard of 
living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the 
same is, therefore, approved.

(b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 
an amended sale-leaseback transaction, for the purpose of 
providing additional financial assistance to the Project, as reflected 
in the Company's letter to the Agency and as amended from time to 
time prior to the closing of the amended sale-leaseback transaction, 
all subject to the satisfaction of the conditions of financial 
assistance described herein.

(c) In consideration of the Project, the Agency agrees to waive the 
requirement for the Company to pay annual rent under the 
Leaseback Agreement and waives the Agency’s closing fee for the 
transaction.
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Section 2. The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction, and the continued 
development of the Facility (the "Agreement") are hereby approved.  
The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the 
Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with such changes 
in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve.  The execution 
thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of 
such approval.

Section 3. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4.02 of the Agreement 
and the conditions described above, the Agency shall continue to 
assist the Company in the Project and will continue to provide 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto.

Section 4. The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel in connection with the amended sale-
leaseback transaction.

Section 5. Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the sale-leaseback transaction.

Section 6. The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 
(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to 
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution.

Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and 
of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public 
session on May 2, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the 
following members were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

Others Present: 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows:

Voting Aye Voting Nay

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
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time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was 
duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 
___________________________ 2025.

_____________________________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the 
New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the ______ day of May 2025 at ______ a.m., 
local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York in connection 
with the following matters:

The Agency owns a 5± acre parcel of land located at 220 South Madison Street 
in the City of Rome, County of Oneida and State of New York (the "Land") and leases 
the Land to Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation (the “Company”) 
pursuant to a First Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 
2015 (the “Lease Agreement”), all for the purpose of the Company undertaking the 
environmental investigation, remediation, restoration and/or clean-up of the Facility 
(collectively, the “Environmental Remediation”) so to enable its eventual re-use and/or 
redevelopment. The Company subleases the Facility to International Wire (the 
“Sublessee”) and the Facility is the subject of a First Amended and Restate PILOT 
Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015 among the Agency, the Company and the 
Sublessee (the “PILOT Agreement”). The Company is requesting an extension of the 
Lease Agreement and the PILOT Agreement to allow the Company to continue to 
undertake the Environmental Remediation and to repair and rehabilitate the Facility 
following significant tornado damage, all to enable its redevelopment and as an 
inducement to the Sublessee to continue to lease the Facility and retain employment in 
the City of Rome (collectively, the “Project”).

The Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to the Company 
in support of the Project in the form of extending the abatement of real property taxes for 
an additional five years with PILOT Payments (a) to be converted to fixed payments 
equal to the current PILOT Payment plus an annual escalator if the Facility is occupied 
by a for-profit tenant and (b) to be fully exempt if the Facility is occupied by a not-for-
profit tenant or the Company, which financial assistance represents a deviation from the 
Agency’ s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly described in a final 
authorizing resolution.

A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear and 
accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of the Facility. 
Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or electronically prior to the 
hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed and posted on the Agency’s 
website. A copy of the letter requesting the extension from the Company to the Agency, 
including an analysis of the costs and benefits of the proposed financial assistance, is 
available for public inspection at the offices of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, 
New York and on the Agency’s website.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Dated:  May __, 2025 By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT B

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
2025 Real Estate Lease Amendment

ROME COMMUNITY BROWNFIELD RESTORATION CORPORATION
(220 South Madison Street/IWG Facility)

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order.

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing.

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows:

The Agency owns a 5± acre parcel of land located at 220 South 
Madison Street in the City of Rome, County of Oneida and State of 
New York (the "Land") and leases the Land to Rome Community 
Brownfield Restoration Corporation (the “Company”) pursuant to a First 
Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 
2015 (the “Lease Agreement”), all for the purpose of the Company 
undertaking the environmental investigation, remediation, restoration 
and/or clean-up of the Facility (collectively, the “Environmental 
Remediation”) so to enable its eventual re-use and/or redevelopment. 
The Company subleases the Facility to International Wire (the 
“Sublessee”) and the Facility is the subject of a First Amended and 
Restate PILOT Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015 among the 
Agency, the Company and the Sublessee (the “PILOT Agreement”). 
The Company is requesting an extension of the Lease Agreement and 
the PILOT Agreement to allow the Company to continue to undertake 
the Environmental Remediation and to repair and rehabilitate the 
Facility following significant tornado damage, all to enable its 
redevelopment and as an inducement to the Sublessee to continue to 
lease the Facility and retain employment in the City of Rome 
(collectively, the “Project”).

The Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to the 
Company in support of the Project in the form of extending the 
abatement of real property taxes for an additional five years with 
PILOT Payments (a) to be converted to fixed payments equal to the 
current PILOT Payment plus an annual escalator if the Facility is 
occupied by a for-profit tenant and (b) to be fully exempt if the Facility 
is occupied by a not-for-profit tenant or the Company, which financial 
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assistance represents a deviation from the Agency’ s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy, to be more particularly described in a final 
authorizing resolution.

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views.

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at ____ a.m.

___________________________________
Mark Kaucher
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing held 
by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Issuer”) on May __, 2025 at 
9:00 a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York with the original thereof on 
file in the office of the Issuer, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the 
minutes in connection with such matter.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend and 
public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, (ii) the 
hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an opportunity 
to be heard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025.

_________________________________
Secretary



 TERMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE  

Board Summary – May 2, 2025  

Company: Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation  

Description of Project: Extension of PILOT on the RCBRC-Complex 4 facility, Rome.  

Project Cost: N/A  

Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation was formed for the sole purpose 
of remediating properties formerly owned by Rome Cable Corporation in the City of Rome, 
so that the properties could be remediated and redeveloped for end users. RCBRC is 
requesting that the existing lease on the RCBRC Complex 4 property be extended for five 
years to allow RCBRC to arrive at a resolution of the existing tax lien issue and to continue to 
market the property, which recently achieved the environmental status that would permit 
the property to be redeveloped. In the meantime, the financial assistance through the PILOT 
is critical to RCBRC being able to operate and fulfill its mission. 

Type of Facility: Vacant, zoned industrial  

Request for Financial Assistance  

PILOT Value estimate: $ 72,821 

Five year extension of existing lease. 

Affected Tax Jurisdictions: County of Oneida; City of Rome; Rome City School District,  

Obligations for Financial Assistance  

Current FTEs to be retained at the Facility: 0 

FTEs to be created at the Facility: 0 







Assessment
Div. 1000
PILOT Payment Rate per $1,000
2025 Full Tax 68.59$                                  
2025 PILOT
2025 Net Benefit

PILOT PILOT Full Tax
 (Current Year) 2025-26 -$                    13,718.86$               

(New Year 1) 2026-27 -$                    13,993.24$               
(New Year 2) 2027-28 -$                    14,273.10$               
(New Year 3) 2028-29 -$                    14,558.57$               
(New Year 4) 2029-30 -$                    14,849.74$               
(New Year 5) 2030-31 -$                    15,146.73$               

-$                    72,821.38$               

PILOT Value 72,821.38$     

13,718.86$                                                   

13,718.86$                                                   
-$                                                                  

Rome Cable Complex 4
200,000$                                                       

200.0$                                                            



Date 4/25/2025
COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Required by §859-a(3) of the
New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation

Description of Project: Extension of Lease

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of N/A
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant:

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced N/A
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project:

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds
Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement

X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
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Project Costs
Land Acquisition -$                     
Existing Building(s) ACQUISITION -$                     
Existing Building(S) RENOVATION -$                     
NEW Building(s) CONSTRUCTION -$                     
Installation Costs -$                     
Site Preparation/Parking Lot Construction -$                     
Machinery & Equipment (other than furniture) -$                     
Furniture & Fixtures -$                     
Architectural & Engineering -$                     
Legal Fees (applicant, IDA, bank, other counsel) -$                     
Financial (all costs related to project financing) -$                     
Permits -$                     
Other -$                     
Agency Fee -$                     
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT -$                     

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount: -$                     
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs
Created Jobs FTE  (over three years)
Retained Jobs

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25,000$                
Average of Construction Jobs

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 15 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 0

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)
Total Earnings Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing -$                     -$                                    

Indirect Jobs
Created -$                     -$                                    
Existing -$                     -$                                    

Construction - only one year
Person Years -$                     -$                                    

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Yr Period) -$                     -$                                    

Average Salary of these 
Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 -$                                    -$                        
Existing 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 -$                                    -$                        

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES -$                                    -$                        

Municipality
37.772412 Rome 24-25
20.751923 Rome 2025
10.069977 Oneida 2025

Total Rate: 68.594312
Real Property Taxes Paid: -$                     

COSTS: IDA BENEFITS

Real Property Taxes Abatement 72,821$                              
Mortgage Tax Abated (.75%)
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Construction Period (8.75%)

Total: 72,821$                              

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.
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Transcript Document No. [   ]

Inducement Resolution
Rome Community Brownfield Restoration Corporation

Complex 4/Henry Street Facility

RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY 
OFFICIAL ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH AN AMENDED 
SALE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION, AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO 
CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO 
THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, from the 1920s until 2003, Rome Cable Corporation (“Rome 
Cable”) and its predecessors owned and operated a wire manufacturing and spinning 
business on 61.338± acres of land located on the west side of South Madison Street, 
City of Rome, County of Oneida, State of New York (the “Rome Cable Site”); and

WHEREAS, following Rome Cable’s bankruptcy and closure, it was 
determined that the Rome Cable Site constituted a “brownfield” site in need of 
environmental investigation, remediation, restoration and/or clean-up (collectively, the 
“Environmental Remediation”) so to enable its eventual re-use and/or redevelopment; 
and

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2004, Rome Community Brownfield 
Restoration Corporation (“RCBRC,” and sometimes referred to as the “Company”) was 
formed for the corporate purpose “to promote the development or re-use of property, 
including Brownfield sites within the City of Rome and its environs, to and including 
acting as an entity for title holding and managing said properties for economic 
development purposes;” and

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the Environmental Remediation of the 
Rome Cable Site, and its eventual re-use and re-development, the Agency acquired the 
fee title to portions of the Rome Cable Site by means of (a) a Trustee’s Deed from Mary 
Fangio, as Trustee for Rome Cable Corporation, et. al., dated December 23, 2004 and 
recorded on January 11, 2005 in the Oneida County Clerk’s Office as Instrument No. 
2005-000683 (the “2004 Deed”) and (b) a Trustee’s Deed from Mary Fangio, Trustee in 
Bankruptcy appointed as such in the matter of “Rome Cable Corporation, et. al.”, 
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Debtors, dated June 20, 2008 and recorded on July 24, 2008 in the Oneida County 
Clerk’s Office as Instrument No. 2008-012510 (the “2008 Deed”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency leases to RCBRC the premises described in the 
200 Deed, being an approximately 49.639 acre parcel of land located at Henry Street in 
the City of Rome, County of Oneida and State of New York, known and designated on 
the tax maps of the County of Oneida as tax map parcel numbers: Section 242.000 
Block 1 Lot 7.1 and Section 242.000 Block 1 Lot 54.1 and more particularly described in 
Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Land"), pursuant to a First Amended and Restated 
Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2022 (the “Lease Agreement”), the term of 
which Lease Agreement is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2026; and

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate clean-up of the Land, the Agency and the 
New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (the “DEC”) entered into a 
State Assistance Contract dated February 25, 2009 (the “SAC”) to develop and 
implement an Environmental Restoration Program (“ERP”) project for the Land; and

WHEREAS, upon approval of a Remedial Investigation/Alternatives 
Analysis Report, the DEC determined that additional remediation of the Land was 
required and subsequently selected remedies for the Land, which were presented in two 
(2) Records of Decision (“RODs”) issued by the DEC on March 30, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the Agency elected to request that the DEC develop and 
implement the RODs, and the Agency and the DEC executed a New York Works II 
Environmental Restoration Project Agreement dated March 19, 2015 (the “NYWII ERP 
Agreement”) for the design and implementation of the remedies; and

WHEREAS, thereafter, based on an updated assessment of the condition 
of the buildings on the Land, the DEC identified the need to demolish the building 
complex on the Land to implement the selected remedies; and

WHEREAS, the inclusion of the required demolition work added significant 
costs to the original remedies; and

WHEREAS, the DEC issued a ROD Amendment on July 31, 2019 
summarizing the amended remedy, which covered an approximately 21.45 acre portion 
of the Land (the “Site”); and

WHEREAS, due to the significant cost increase, which was more than 
three times the original ROD  remedy,  the Agency elected to terminate the NYWII ERP 
Agreement pursuant to Paragraph XIV, Sub-Paragraph C thereof, and requested that 
the Site be transferred into the NYS Superfund program as a Class 2 Site whereupon 



3
21554168.v1-4/25/25

the DEC assumed all responsibility for the remediation, demolition, and site restoration 
costs relating to the Site; and

WHEREAS, the Agency signed DEC Consent Order # CO 6-20220801-37 
on August 3, 2022 (the "Consent Order") containing certain liability protections for the 
Agency, its successors and assigns through acquisition of title, and persons who 
develop or otherwise occupy the Site; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Consent Order, certain provisions of 
the NYWII ERP Agreement will survive its termination and such provisions continue to 
be an enforceable part of the Consent Order; and

WHEREAS, on the basis of the DEC issuing the Consent Order, RCBRC 
and Rome Industrial Development Corporation (“RIDC”) entered into a project 
development agreement (the “PDA”), which PDA provides, among other things, that 
RIDC is to act as the “lead developer” of a project (the “Redevelopment Project” or the 
“Project”) to develop the Land for use by manufacturing and/or other industrial or 
commercial end-users (each, individually, as “End-User” and, collectively, the “End 
Users”); and

WHEREAS, in anticipation of the Redevelopment Project and as an 
inducement to End Users, the Agency, City of Rome, Oneida County, Rome City School 
District, and Rome Industrial Development Corporation entered into an Agreement 
Approving PILOT Terms and Allocating PILOT Payments dated as of August 27, 2018 
(the “Allocation Agreement”), under which the parties agreed to certain essential PILOT 
terms that would be incorporated into future PILOT Agreements for End Users and how 
PILOT Payments collected thereunder would be allocated among the parties; and

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2024 the Agency and RCBRC granted an 
environmental easement (the "Environmental Easement") to the DEC covering the 
Land, which Environmental Easement was recorded in the Office of the Oneida County 
Clerk and was granted pursuant to Article 71, Title 36 of the New York State 
Environmental Conservation Law; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted a letter to the Agency outlining 
its success in completing the Environmental Remediation and requesting an extension 
of the Lease Agreement to allow the Company to continue to undertake the 
Redevelopment Project; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, 
develop, encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the 
State of New York; and
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WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial 
assistance to the Company in the form of extending the full exemption from real 
property taxes for a period of five years, which is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform 
Tax Exemption Policy (the “Policy”); and

WHEREAS, the value of the proposed financial assistance is estimated to 
be $72,821 (approximately); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating deviating from Policy for the 
following reasons:

1. The nature of the Project: The purpose of the Agency’s acquisition of the 
property was to assist the Company in its remediation and redevelopment of 
the former Rome Cable site. Extending the Lease Agreement, and the 
Agency’s related financial assistance to the Company, will promote, 
encourage and assist the Company to complete the Redevelopment Project 
and will thereby advance the job opportunities, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of Oneida County residents.

2. The nature of the property before the project begins: The Company has 
successfully completed the Environmental Remediation of the “brownfield” 
site.

3. The economic condition of the area:  The Facility is located in an area that 
has been designated an economic development zone (Empire Zone) 
pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law, and is therefore 
located in a "highly distressed area" (as defined in Section 854(18) of the 
New York General Municipal Law).

4. The extent to which financial assistance will create or retain permanent, 
private sector jobs:  The Company has been successful in facilitating 
redevelopment of the balance of the Rome Cable Site, and the proposed 
financial assistance will support the Company in achieving further success.

5. Impact of the proposed tax exemptions on affected tax jurisdictions:  
Following Rome Cable’s bankruptcy and closure, the site has been unable to 
generate any tax revenue until Environmental Remediation was complete. 
The continuation of the tax-exempt status will not reduce the amount of tax 
revenue presently realized by the affected tax jurisdictions.
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6. Impact on existing and proposed businesses and economic 
development projects in the vicinity:  Continuing the Redevelopment 
Project will attract new businesses and investment to the City of Rome and 
will also help existing businesses to grow and prosper.

7. The extent to which additional sources of revenue for municipalities and 
school districts will be created:  To date the Company’s Redevelopment 
Project has generated tax revenues and/or PILOT payments for the benefit of 
the County of Oneida, the City of Rome and the Rome City School District. 
Continuing the Redevelopment Project will generate additional tax revenues 
and/or PILOT payments.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the 
Agency constitutes a “State Agency”; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has determined for purposes of SEQRA that the 
environmental conditions at the Facility are not impacted by the current action, and 
therefore the environmental reviews conducted by the Agency at the time of the Project 
are sufficient and are hereby ratified; and

WHEREAS, prior to the closing of an amended sale-leaseback 
transaction, and the granting of any financial assistance, a public hearing (the 
“Hearing”) will be held so that all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
financial assistance contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the 
Facility, can be heard; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of an 
amended sale-leaseback transaction, and the granting of any financial assistance, and 
such notice (together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed 
hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that, 
subject to the satisfaction of the aforesaid conditions:

Section 1. (a) The Redevelopment Project, and the Agency’s continued financial 
assistance therefor, will promote job opportunities, health, general 
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prosperity and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the 
County and the people of the State of New York and improve their 
standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act 
and the same is, therefore, approved.

(b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into 
an amended sale-leaseback transaction, for the purpose of 
providing additional financial assistance to the Redevelopment 
Project, as reflected in the Company's letter to the Agency and as 
amended from time to time prior to the closing of the amended 
sale-leaseback transaction, all subject to the satisfaction of the 
conditions of financial assistance described herein.

(c) In consideration of the ongoing Redevelopment Project, the Agency 
agrees to waive the requirement for the Company to pay annual 
rent under the Leaseback Agreement and waives the Agency’s 
closing fee for the transaction.

Section 2. The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction, and the continued 
development of the Facility (the "Agreement") are hereby approved.  
The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the 
Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with such changes 
in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve.  The execution 
thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of 
such approval.

Section 3. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4.02 of the Agreement 
and the conditions described above, the Agency shall continue to 
assist the Company in the Project and will continue to provide 
Financial Assistance with respect thereto.

Section 4. The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel in connection with the amended sale-
leaseback transaction.

Section 5. Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to 
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prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to 
effect the sale-leaseback transaction.

Section 6. The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 
(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to 
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution.

Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and 
of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in public 
session on May 2, 2025 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the 
following members were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

Others Present: 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows:

Voting Aye Voting Nay

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 



9
21554168.v1-4/25/25

time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was 
duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 
___________________________ 2025.

_____________________________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the ______ day of May 2025 at 
______ a.m., local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New 
York in connection with the following matters:

The Agency owns an approximately 49.639 acre parcel of land located at 
Henry Street in the City of Rome, County of Oneida and State of New York (the 
"Land") and leases the Land to Rome Community Brownfield Restoration 
Corporation (the “Company”) pursuant to a First Amended and Restated Lease 
Agreement dated as of September 1, 2022 (the “Lease Agreement”), all for the 
purpose of the Company undertaking the environmental investigation, remediation, 
restoration and/or clean-up (collectively, the “Environmental Remediation”) so to 
enable its eventual re-use and/or redevelopment. The Company and Rome 
Industrial Development Corporation (“RIDC”) entered into a project development 
agreement (the “PDA”), which PDA provides, among other things, that RIDC is to act 
as the “lead developer” of a project (the “Redevelopment Project” or the “Project”) to 
develop the Land for use by manufacturing and/or other industrial or commercial 
end-users (each, individually, as “End-User” and, collectively, the “End Users”). The 
Company has completed the Environmental Remediation and is requesting the 
Agency extend the Lease Agreement for an additional five years in continued 
support of the Redevelopment Project.

The Agency contemplates that it will provide additional financial assistance to 
the Company relating to the Facility in the form of extending the abatement of real 
property taxes for an additional five years, which financial assistance represents a 
deviation from the Agency’ s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly 
described in a final authorizing resolution.

A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear 
and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to 
either the proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of 
the Facility. Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or 
electronically prior to the hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed 
and posted on the Agency’s website. A copy of the letter requesting the extension 
from the Company to the Agency, including an analysis of the costs and benefits of 
the proposed financial assistance, is available for public inspection at the offices of 
the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s website.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Dated: May __, 2025 By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT B

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
2025 Real Estate Lease Amendment

ROME COMMUNITY BROWNFIELD RESTORATION CORPORATION
(Complex 4/Henry Street Facility)

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order.

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing.

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows:

The Agency owns an approximately 49.639 acre parcel of land located 
at Henry Street in the City of Rome, County of Oneida and State of 
New York (the "Land") and leases the Land to Rome Community 
Brownfield Restoration Corporation (the “Company”) pursuant to a First 
Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 
2022 (the “Lease Agreement”), all for the purpose of the Company 
undertaking the environmental investigation, remediation, restoration 
and/or clean-up (collectively, the “Environmental Remediation”) so to 
enable its eventual re-use and/or redevelopment. The Company and 
Rome Industrial Development Corporation (“RIDC”) entered into a 
project development agreement (the “PDA”), which PDA provides, 
among other things, that RIDC is to act as the “lead developer” of a 
project (the “Redevelopment Project” or the “Project”) to develop the 
Land for use by manufacturing and/or other industrial or commercial 
end-users (each, individually, as “End-User” and, collectively, the “End 
Users”). The Company has completed the Environmental Remediation 
and is requesting the Agency extend the Lease Agreement for an 
additional five years in continued support of the Redevelopment 
Project.

The Agency contemplates that it will provide additional financial 
assistance to the Company relating to the Facility in the form of 
extending the abatement of real property taxes for an additional five 
years, which financial assistance represents a deviation from the 
Agency’ s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly 
described in a final authorizing resolution..
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4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views.

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at ____ a.m.

___________________________________
Mark Kaucher
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Issuer”) on May __, 
2025 at 9:00 a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York with the original 
thereof on file in the office of the Issuer, and that the same is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes in connection with such matter.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend 
and public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, 
(ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an 
opportunity to be heard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2025.

_________________________________
Secretary
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Resolution to Authorize 2A 
Conversion Project, Amend 
Recapture Agreement and Extend 
Period of Agency Appointment
B240 LLC (Air City Lofts Phase 2)
Facility

Date: May 2, 2025

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”) held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on May 2, 2025, the 
following members of the Agency were:

Members Present: 

Staff Present: 

Others Present: 

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that 
among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters 
pertaining to a proposed conversion of all commercial space into residential units and 
extending the period of the agency appointment relating to previously approved financial 
assistance to B240 LLC.

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with 
the following members voting:

Voting Aye Voting Nay
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVERSION OF ALL COMMERCIAL 
SPACE INTO RESIDENTIAL UNITS, TO EXTEND THE PERIOD OF THE 
AGENCY APPOINTMENT AND EXECUTE RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH 
RESPECT TO THE B240 LLC (AIR CITY LOFTS PHASE 2) FACILITY 
LOCATED IN THE CITY OF ROME, ONEIDA COUNTY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 
New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York 
(collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among 
other things, to assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as 
authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Company previously requested the Agency’s assistance in 
connection with Phase 2 of a multi-phased mixed-use community which consists of the 
acquisition of a 6.655± acre parcel of land located at 129 & 143 Air City Boulevard, 
Griffiss Business and Technology Park, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York (the 
“Land”); construction on the Land of two, four-story mixed-use buildings comprised of 
26,000± square feet of retail/commercial space on the first floor and 72 market rate 
residential one- and two-bedroom apartments on the second through fourth floors, 
together with sidewalks and infrastructure to service the same (collectively, the 
“Improvements”); and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all for the purpose of providing housing and amenities within the 
community for existing employees of the Griffiss Business and Technology Park, and to 
enhance talent recruitment and economic development in the region (the Land, the 
Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the 
construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, on June 19, 2020 the Agency adopted a resolution authorizing 
financial assistance in support of the Facility, which included exemptions from sales and 
uses taxes in an amount not to exceed $752,000; and

WHEREAS, on August 17, 2021 the Agency adopted a resolution extending the 
period of the agency appointment through May 31, 2022; and

WHEREAS, on May 20, 2022 the Agency adopted a resolution extending the 
period of the agency appointment through May 31, 2023; and

WHEREAS, on September 5, 2024 the Agency adopted a resolution authorizing 
the conversion of the commercial space in Building 2B into nine (9) residential units (the 
“2B Conversion Project”), and extending the period of the agency appointment under 
which the Company may utilize the exemption to May 31, 2025 to complete the 2B 
Conversion Project; and

WHEREAS, the Company has now submitted a request to the Agency requesting 
consent to convert the commercial space in Building 2A into sixteen (16) residential 
units (the “2A Conversion Project”), and extending the period of the agency appointment 
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under which the Company may utilize the exemption through April 30, 2026 (the 
“Extended Financial Assistance”) to complete the 2A Conversion Project; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Project Obligation and Recapture Agreement 
dated as of December 28, 2020 (the “Recapture Agreement”) between the Agency and 
the Company, if the Annual Project Review returns a score of 80 points or lower, it could 
subject the Company to the remedies contained in the Recapture Agreement including 
a reduction in PILOT benefits; and 

WHEREAS, if approved, the 2A Conversion Project will result in the Facility being 
a fully residential project and will no longer be able to achieve the “Mixed Use” scoring 
criteria in its Annual Project Review, which would result in a maximum score of 80 
points for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Recapture Agreement also reflects the Company committed to 
creating 34.5 FTEs as a result of the Project (the “Employment Obligation”), which 
Employment Obligation will not be achievable if the 2A Conversion Project is approved; 
and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency amend the Recapture 
Agreement such that completion of the 2A Conversion Project will not result in a loss of 
benefits for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines:

(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and

(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act and 
will continue to constitute a “project” if the 2A Conversion Project is authorized; and

(c) The 2A Conversion Project and the Extended Financial Assistance will 
promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New York and improve their 
standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and

(d) The 2A Conversion Project and the Extended Financial Assistance is 
reasonably necessary to induce the Company to maintain and expand its business 
operations in the State of New York; and
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(e) The Agency’s determination to provide Financial Assistance for the Project 
was largely based on the commitment by the Company to provide housing for the 
employees of the Griffiss Business and Technology Park and to enhance talent 
recruitment and economic development in the region by filling a demonstrated demand 
for market rent housing in the City of Rome, and the Project will continue to meet its 
stated goals if it does not include a commercial element; and

(f) The SEQRA findings adopted by the Agency on May 15, 2020 
encompassed the actions to be undertaken by this resolution and no changes have 
been made since that time to the proposed action that would create new or increased 
adverse environmental impacts; and

(f) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to approve the 2A 
Conversion Project and the Extended Financial Assistance and to amend the Recapture 
Agreement.

Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to (i) 
authorize the 2A Conversion Project; (ii) amend the Recapture Agreement to eliminate 
the Employment Obligation and provide that if the Annual Project Review returns a 
score of 79 points or lower, it could subject the Company to the remedies cited in the 
Recapture Agreement; (iii); extend the agency appointment to April 30, 2026 and 
(iv) execute and deliver an amendment to the Recapture Agreement, an agency 
appointment letter, Form ST-60 and related documents (the “2A Conversion Project 
Closing Documents”) in support of the Project.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment of the 2A Conversion Project and the Extended 
Financial Assistance, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such 
Extended Financial Assistance are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.  The form and substance of the 2A Conversion Project Closing 
Documents (each in substantially the forms presented to the Agency and which, prior to 
the execution and delivery thereof, may be redated) are hereby approved.

Section 5.

(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or any 
member of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and 
deliver the 2A Conversion Project Closing Documents, all in substantially the forms 
thereof presented to or approved by this meeting with such changes, variations, 
omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, 
Secretary or any member of the Agency shall approve, and such other related 
documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, 
necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution. The 
execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director or any member 
of the Agency shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.
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(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or member 
of the Agency are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any 
additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the 
Leaseback Agreement).

Section 6.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required or provided for by the provisions of the 2A Conversion Project 
Closing Documents, and to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, 
instruments and documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all 
such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, 
employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 
resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and 
provisions of the 2A Conversion Project Closing Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 7.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the 
Agency, including the resolutions contained therein, held on May 2, 2025 with the 
original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the 
proceedings of the Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of 
said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of May 2, 2025.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:___________________________________
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary
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Resolution Consenting to Sublease
Hangar Road Rome, LLC (Air City 
Lofts Phase 2) Facility

Date: May 2, 2025

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) held 
at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on May 2, 2025, the following members of the 
Agency were:

Members Present: 

EDGE Staff Present: 

Other Attendees:  

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that among 
the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters pertaining to 
consenting to the sublease of commercial space at the Hangar Road Rome, LLC Facility.

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with the 
following members voting:

Voting Aye Voting Nay
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RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE SUBLEASE OF COMMERCIAL SPACE WITH 
RESPECT TO THE HANGAR ROAD ROME, LLC FACILITY LOCATED IN THE CITY 
OF ROME, ONEIDA COUNTY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York (collectively, 
the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among other things, to assist 
with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, Hangar Road Rome, LLC (the “Company”) previously requested that the 
Agency provide certain financial assistance, consisting of exemptions from mortgage recording 
taxes, abatement of real property taxes and exemptions from sales taxes (the “Financial 
Assistance”), for a project consisting of acquisition of a 3.00± acre parcel of land located at 
Hangar Road, Griffiss Business and Technology Park, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York 
(the “Land”); construction on the Land of a three-story, 44,000± square foot office building, 
together with improvements to infrastructure to service the same (collectively, the 
“Improvements”); and acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all for the purpose of leasing to two office tenants that serve the intelligence and 
cybersecurity industries (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment are referred to 
collectively as the “Facility” and the construction and equipping of the Improvements is referred 
to as the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility to the Company pursuant to a Leaseback 
Agreement dated as of August 5, 2020 (the “Leaseback Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Company subleases a 33,703± square foot portion of the Facility to 
North Point Defense, Inc. (the “Assignor”) pursuant to a Commercial Sublease Agreement dated 
as of April 27, 2020, as amended (collectively, as so amended, the “Sublease”); and

WHEREAS, Assignor assigned to General Atomics Integrated Intelligence, Inc. (the 
“Assignee”) all of Assignor’s right, title and interest in, to and under the Sublease, and Assignee 
accepted and assumed from Assignor all of Assignor’s obligations under the Sublease, effective 
as of March 1, 2025; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Leaseback Agreement the Agency must consent to 
the assignment of any portion of the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted to the Agency a request to consent to the 
assignment of the Sublease from Assignor to Assignee (the “Sublease Consent”); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as follows:

Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines:

(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and
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(c) The Sublease Consent will promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, 
general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act by 
providing a service that is in demand by the employees of the Griffiss Business and Technology 
Park; and

(d) The Sublease Consent is reasonably necessary to induce the Company to 
maintain and expand its business operations in the State of New York; and

(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to approve the Sublease 
Consent.

Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to grant the 
Sublease Consent in support of the Facility, subject to inclusion of the Agency’s standard 
sublease provisions in a form approved by Agency counsel that includes insurance coverage 
acceptable to the Agency’s insurance agent.

Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to do all things necessary or appropriate for 
the accomplishment of the Sublease Consent, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with 
respect to such Sublease Consent are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 4.  

(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or any member of 
the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the 
Extended Sales Tax Documents, all in substantially the forms thereof presented to or approved 
by this meeting with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Vice 
Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or any member of the Agency shall approve, and such 
other related documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, 
necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution. The 
execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director or any member of the 
Agency shall constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or member of the 
Agency are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Leaseback 
Agreement).

Section 6.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or 
provided for by the Sublease Consent, and to execute and deliver all such additional 
certificates, instruments and documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all 
such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or 
agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to 
cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the 
Sublease Consent binding upon the Agency.

Section 7.   This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Agency, 
including the resolutions contained therein, held on May 2, 2025 with the original thereof on file 
in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and 
of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related 
to the subject matters therein referred to.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of May 2, 2025.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:___________________________________
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary
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